

A meeting of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology was conducted on Wednesday February 07, 2007 at the Professional Licensing Boards Division office site.

Those present were:

**From the Board**

**Martha Harris**  
**Wanda Brooks**  
**Betty Carlisle**  
**Kay Kendrick**  
**Cynthia Stein**  
**Michelle Turley**  
**Don Westbrook**  
**John Siggers**

**From the Staff**

**Eleanor Surrency, Executive Director**  
**Angela Price, Investigative Specialist**  
**Annie Plummer, Business Regulations & Inspections Supervisor**  
**Janet Jackson, Assistant Attorney General**

Martha Harris called the meeting to order at 9:10 am.

**Betty Carlisle moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the minutes from the January 10, 2007 meeting.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Cynthia Stein seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the minutes from the January 17, 2007 meeting with changes.

**Executive Director Report**

Eleanor Surrency's report included the following:

1. Report of License Suspensions, Denials or Releases:

Pursuant to request from the Department of Human Resources (DHR) and the Georgia Higher Education Assistance Corporation (GHEAC), **Betty Carlisle moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** that the Board suspends, denies or releases suspensions of the following licenses to practice for failure to repay a student loan or child support obligation and further move that this suspension will cease upon receipt by the Division Director of a "Notice of Release" from the Department of Human Resources (DHR) or the Georgia Higher Education Assistance Corporation (GHEAC):

| <b><u>Name</u></b> | <b><u>Lic.#</u></b> | <b><u>Lic. Type</u></b> | <b><u>Request</u></b> | <b><u>Agency</u></b> |
|--------------------|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|----------------------|
| Regina M. Larkin   | CO083847            | Master Cos              | Suspend               | GHEAC                |
| Shonquansia Davis  | CO094891            | Master Cos              | Suspend               | GHEAC                |
| Lisa M. Campbell   | CO091814            | Master Cos              | Suspend               | GHEAC                |
| Vickie L. Martin   | CO076776            | Master Cos              | Suspend               | GHEAC                |
| Flecia R. Holmes   | CO084130            | Master Cos              | Suspend               | GHEAC                |

|                    |           |              |         |       |
|--------------------|-----------|--------------|---------|-------|
| Tosha T. Pinckney  | CO083402  | Master Cos   | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Lora M. Richards   | CO100271  | Master Cos   | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Tangela Q. Moore   | CO093214  | Master Cos   | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Kathryn L. Lindsey | COA002586 | Cos Apprent. | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Leticia A. Haynes  | COA005607 | Cos Apprent. | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Angel N. Glawson   | COA005996 | Cos Apprent. | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Audra A. Peyton    | NTA004038 | Nail Tech.   | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Anslee L. Mele     | ES002425  | Esthetician  | Suspend | GHEAC |
| Lori M. Kirschbaum | ES001540  | Esthetician  | Suspend | GHEAC |

2. Report of License Issued (January 01, 2007 to January 31, 2007):

**Michelle Turley moved, Wanda Brooks seconded and the Board voted unanimously** to ratify the report as follows:

|          |                            |                      |
|----------|----------------------------|----------------------|
| CO101716 | Smallwood, Elizabeth Anne  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101717 | Johnson, Juanita Nathalie  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101718 | Carroll, Monica E          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101719 | Lowry, Holley Shea         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101720 | Diaz, Wanda Ivette         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101721 | Adams, Audra Leigh         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101722 | Barr, Robin Salina         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101723 | Tran, Trish Nguyen         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101724 | Perkins, Winifred A        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101725 | Paddock, Jessica A         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101726 | Barry, Sarah Michael       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101727 | Guy, Lisa Marie            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101728 | Park, Felisa W.            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101729 | Handmacher, Akemi Hiroishi | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101730 | Williams, Sheronn Lyresse  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101731 | Foglia, Christina Marie    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101732 | Vereen, Tamu               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101733 | Lee, Michael Jason         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101734 | Epps, Kristi Kala          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101735 | Bhimani, Zarintaj Ayaz     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101736 | Davis, Marilyn R           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101737 | Fenn-Jones, Ramona Caren   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101738 | Smith, Denise Michelle     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101739 | Gass, Megan Denise         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101740 | Mathis, Britney C.E.       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101741 | Taylor, Enoch              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101742 | Jackson, Melissa Dawn      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101743 | Jones, Tiffany Noel        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101744 | Banks, Esther Loreen       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101745 | Allen, Lawanda Leann       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101746 | McGhin, Robert Adams       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101747 | Lang, Rebecca Ann          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101748 | Burley, Simira Nicole      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101749 | Arnold, Cindy J            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101750 | Ponder, Wakeitha Nicole    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101751 | Phillips, Tanisha M        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101752 | Lep, Pheak D               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101753 | Knight, Carma Faye         | Master Cosmetologist |

|          |                             |                      |
|----------|-----------------------------|----------------------|
| CO101754 | Ware, Alesha Renee          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101755 | Williams, Kimberly          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101756 | Jones, Crystal D            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101757 | Swinney, Amena Lynell       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101758 | Olagbaju, Kofowarola Amifat | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101759 | Cuadros, Leonor             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101760 | Mackey, Laura R             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101761 | Downton, Michele E          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101762 | Eyler, Brittany Nicole      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101763 | Hudson, Rita                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101764 | Delvalle, Luz E             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101765 | Hernandez, Leslie           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101766 | Alvarado, Victoria          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101767 | Yarbrough, Lindsay Brooke   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101768 | Herrin, Brenda D            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101769 | Farmer, Nakia Lynette       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101770 | Brooker, Ryan C             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101771 | Ray, Tamela Jo              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101772 | MCCray, Shakita La'Shon     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101773 | Webb, Melissa Kay           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101774 | Mingle, Ashsperspective L   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101775 | Brown, Marie A              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101776 | Anders, Kathryn Statler     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101777 | Pilgrim, Mary Megan         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101778 | Pilgrim, Amanda Marie       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101779 | Scriven, Sharonda Monique   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101780 | Thomas, Denita Latrice      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101781 | Burgos, Sarahi D            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101782 | Klein, Jennifer Anne        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101783 | McCollum, Eva D             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101784 | Hornbach, Angela Marie      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101785 | Monfared, Farzaneh          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101786 | Lee, Sun Chu                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101787 | Wright, Latoya Charnel      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101788 | Pham, Diem T                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101789 | Purcell, Kathy M            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101790 | Heard, Jolinda S            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101791 | Ennes, Merideth Nicole      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101792 | Rizzi, Michael Angelo       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101793 | Topps, Timothy Terrelle     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101794 | Sarembock, Gabriella        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101795 | Anderson, Marsha Ann        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101796 | Thompson, Mallory Erin      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101797 | Duncan, Rebecca Ann         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101798 | Reinhardt, Lauren Krista    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101799 | Gaines, Lisa Marie          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101800 | Lozano, Alondra Cristal     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101801 | Dillard, Deshione D         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101802 | Rawls, Shavon Karmen        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101803 | Chastain, Whitney Susann    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101804 | Parks, LeZanne Michelle     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101805 | Shannon, Leigh Anne         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101806 | Withrow, Katherine S        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101807 | Lee, Mi Young               | Master Cosmetologist |

|          |                             |                      |
|----------|-----------------------------|----------------------|
| CO101808 | Budianto, Budianto          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101809 | Ambrose, Jan K              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101810 | Vasquez, Cindy              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101811 | Brown, Jeremy Michael       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101812 | Melton, So Un               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101813 | Seta, Carlo Thomas          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101814 | Rieck, Allison N            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101815 | Maletta, Nicole Marie       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101816 | Sharpe, Ashley M            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101817 | Strickland, Melissa Ladford | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101818 | Martin, Milah               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101819 | Hailes, Shameka L           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101821 | Graham, Wilhemia A          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101822 | Lewis, Brandi               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101823 | Levi, Lisa                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101824 | Laster, Shanae Nicole       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101825 | Woolfolk, Preston Jermaine  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101826 | Bennett, Kayla A            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101827 | Claytor, Tiffiney Latrice   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101828 | Myles, Amanda Teresa        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101829 | Adams, Creighton D          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101830 | Johnson, Chrell Lynn        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101831 | Williams, Angela Denise     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101832 | Cotton, Sandra Jo           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101833 | Banks, Tenisha R            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101834 | Profitt, Ellion C           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101835 | Lee, HyunSook               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101836 | Tran, Loan Nhu Lu           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101837 | Bartley, Danielle           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101838 | Reed, Tara M                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101839 | Holliday, Tabatha G         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101840 | Soumana, Sonya Lewis        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101841 | Clark, Kristi Lynn          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101842 | Micari, Lawrence V          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101843 | Chung, Tina Ashlin          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101844 | Richey, Kristy A            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101845 | Bolinger, Stacey A          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101846 | Russell, Jessica Nicole     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101847 | Scott, Brittany Allison     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101848 | Phillips, Barbara Kaye      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101849 | Blank, Katherine L          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101850 | Berrong, Brooke Ashley      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101851 | Walkes, Yolanda Pearl       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101852 | Callahan, Colleen Catherine | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101853 | Cameron, Angela McCarty     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101854 | Blyden, Joy Olivia          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101855 | Hall, Kimberly S            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101856 | Clifton, Jessica Hope       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101857 | Carden, Amanda Nowell       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101858 | Phelps, Amanda Cleveland    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101859 | Scott, LeMarcus A           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101860 | Jackson, Ebony S            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101861 | Smith, Ivy Leigh            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101862 | Mercer, Hilary Florence     | Master Cosmetologist |

|          |                                   |                      |
|----------|-----------------------------------|----------------------|
| CO101863 | Holder, Stephanie Eilen           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101864 | Pullin, Tashana                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101865 | Beeson-Broome, Sara Elisabeth     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101866 | Higginbotham, Melanie Diana       | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101867 | Worthey, Latoshia N               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101868 | Nguyen, Nikki Thi                 | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101869 | Preyer, Melvin J                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101870 | Madsen, Courtney Dawn             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101871 | Hunter, Tonya R                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101872 | Broadwater, Dorian Arthur         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101873 | Thurmond, Angela Marie            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101874 | Rogers, Amanda Leigh              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101875 | Richardson, Dianne                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101876 | Peacock, William Felton           | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101877 | Nguyen, Nghi Tan                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101878 | Kennedy, Erin D                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101879 | Bingham, Sarah Marie              | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101880 | Bradley-Childress, Rhonda Cozette | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101881 | Hawks, Sarah                      | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101882 | Campo, Susana Diane               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101883 | Smith, Lamecia Denice             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101884 | Ennis, Bernella                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101885 | Moon, Do Soon                     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101886 | Watson, Marjorie J                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101887 | Parsaud, Lucia C                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101888 | Caba, Ana Cludina                 | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101889 | Kim, Geum Hee                     | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101890 | McCarthy, Sarah E.                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101891 | Morris, Jennifer Laurelann        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101892 | De La Vega, Rita F                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101893 | Miller, Dana K                    | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101894 | Weesner, Katie Lynn               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101895 | Harper, Kimberly Kyra             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101896 | Thompson, Karen Lynne             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101897 | Morgan, Amanda A                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101898 | Donehoo, Michael Benjamin         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101899 | Jones, Jeana Lynn                 | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101900 | Kologe, Kimberly L                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101901 | Driskell, Tiffany Nicole          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101902 | Brown, Benita Ann Bush            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101903 | Armstrong, Stacy Elizabeth        | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101904 | Borders, Tamara Michelle          | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101905 | West, Tanisha L                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101906 | Miller, TaMeka A                  | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101907 | Thompson, Aucencia Marcia         | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101908 | Futch, Erin Marie                 | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101909 | Switzer, Tiffany Quinn            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101910 | Neal, Whitney N                   | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101911 | Gazaway, Whitney Hope             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101912 | Hines, Tiffanee April             | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101913 | Coppage, Valerie J                | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101914 | Flowers, Vincent Errol            | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101915 | Meyer, Dianna Marie               | Master Cosmetologist |
| CO101916 | Barnwell, Tamika Taiwan           | Master Cosmetologist |

|           |                                |                        |
|-----------|--------------------------------|------------------------|
| CO101917  | Smith, Kathy Yvette            | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101918  | Alfono-Pitts, Dori Michelle    | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101919  | Pupo, Nola J                   | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101920  | Willis, Samantha Valerie       | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101921  | Harris, Catina Tamarcy         | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101922  | Rivard, Sarah Dee              | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101923  | Gill, Elizabeth A              | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101924  | Torres, Cintya I               | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101925  | Winkler, Amanda Lee            | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101926  | Stephens, Heidi Cassandra      | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101927  | Austin Dukes, Latisha Nicole   | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101928  | Badwan, Tammy                  | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101929  | Delrio-England, Ana Maria Alba | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101930  | Morris, Henry L                | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101931  | Wagoner, Kelly E               | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101932  | Green, Edwina A                | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101933  | Bates, Pamela                  | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101934  | Johnson, Deborah Bell          | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101935  | Lucas, Dorothea                | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101936  | Dickens, Molly B               | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101937  | Hovey, Kaytie Jo               | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101938  | Bush, Lauren Nicole            | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101939  | Crews, Danielle Cowart         | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101940  | Crawford, Thomas Patrick       | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101941  | Walston, Sabrina Marie         | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101942  | Copeland, Ashley Nicole        | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101943  | Glenn, Sujuan D                | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101944  | Cooper, Shekita A              | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101945  | Peterson, Alpheia Shantell     | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101946  | Hiers, Corrie                  | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101947  | Carns, Monica V                | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101948  | Autry, Susan Waylinda          | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101949  | Sharriff, Xavier I             | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101950  | Morris, Gregory B, Sr.         | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101951  | Pecoraro, Wanda F              | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101952  | Allen, Katherine L             | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101953  | Foellmi, Amanda Lynn           | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101954  | McCleskey, Lindsay C.          | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101955  | Hilburn, Cynthia Lynn          | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101956  | Edwards, Crystal Marie         | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101957  | Woodell, Belva J               | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101958  | Snider, Michelle Lee           | Master Cosmetologist   |
| CO101959  | Leiva, Leila C                 | Master Cosmetologist   |
| COA007252 | Drummonds, Dawn Emily          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007253 | Davis, Maria Nicole            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007254 | Burney, Sheniqua L             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007256 | McDonald, Nicole Marie         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007257 | Sikes, Jennifer Watton         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007258 | Moore, Warner A                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007259 | Walker, Julia Leigh            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007260 | Nunn, Joseph Gordon            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007261 | Ramirez, Julio Caesar          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007262 | Radford, Tia Lynn              | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007263 | Le, Phuc Diem                  | Cosmetology Apprentice |

|           |                                 |                        |
|-----------|---------------------------------|------------------------|
| COA007264 | Battiste, Danila L              | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007265 | Wacter, Deborah Lynn            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007266 | Anderson, Allison Victoria      | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007267 | McSwain, Shondra M              | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007268 | Wisham, Lakin Nicole            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007269 | Harrell, Tasha Nicole           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007270 | Jones, LeQuita Monique          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007271 | Drake, Susan J.                 | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007272 | Sterling, April Michelle        | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007273 | Rowe, Haley Lynn                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007274 | Music, Christy L                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007275 | Jenkins, Kimberly M             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007276 | Henley Jordon, Shannon          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007277 | Goodson, Amber Lynn             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007278 | Groth, Julie Tiffany            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007279 | Weatherford, Erin Taylor        | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007280 | Bowman, Angela M                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007281 | Woods, Malinda Lynn             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007282 | Collum, Jessica Welker          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007283 | Dawson, Gene W                  | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007284 | Gordon, Tyeisha Melanie         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007285 | Wagner, Han D                   | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007286 | Rios, Maria Elieta              | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007287 | Cullens, Mya Delesea            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007288 | Loomis, Katherine M             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007289 | Cavanaugh, Catie Marie          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007290 | Dixon, Kaylan Casey             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007291 | Hunnicutt, Wendy Micheal        | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007292 | Wright, Mekeisa Smith           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007293 | Pace, Leigh Elizabeth           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007294 | Plaxico, Nicole F               | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007295 | Swann, Jennifer Elizabeth       | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007296 | Brown, Todd Clay                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007297 | McCall, Tiffany Nicole          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007298 | Rambo Smith, Bridgette Jeanette | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007299 | Bunn, Denise Swistowski         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007300 | Roberts, Earlie Andre           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007301 | Yaun, Jessie Peyton             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007302 | Simpson, Sydney Lauren          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007303 | Davis, Kimberly Shae            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007304 | McDonald, Celisse Mariel        | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007305 | Wilcox, Joschela Marie          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007306 | Alexander, April Breeze         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007307 | White, Melissa Arlene           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007308 | Anderson, George Romero         | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007309 | Codner, Fred Gordon             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007310 | Sims, Shannon Yvette            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007311 | Horne, Winnie E                 | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007312 | Clark, Sakeena Latrece          | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007313 | Childers, Morgan Lea            | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007314 | Simons, Ashley Lynn             | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007315 | Perkins, Anthony                | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007316 | Elliott, Holly Denire           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COA007317 | Nguyen, Yenha Thi               | Cosmetology Apprentice |

|            |  |                        |
|------------|--|------------------------|
| COA007318  | Heningburg, Tifanie Dudley                           | Cosmetology Apprentice |
| COI-000956 | Rankins, Kimberly B                                  | Cosmetology Instructor |
| COI-000957 | Hyde-Murphy, Quinnetta                               | Cosmetology Instructor |
| COI-000958 | Muonghane, DiDi                                      | Cosmetology Instructor |
| COI-000959 | Palmer-Harris, Toshiba K.                            | Cosmetology Instructor |
| COSA036698 | Moon Cosmetology Salon                               | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036699 | Sola Salon   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036700 | Be Coming Salon                                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036701 | Express Hair Braiding                                | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036702 | Divine Beauty Salon                                  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036703 | Gisell's Professional Hair Braiding and Weaving Shop | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036704 | Blessed Hands Salon                                  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036705 | Ric Sha Mone Beauty Salon                            | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036706 | Headz Up Salon                                       | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036707 | Spa OM Magie Salon                                   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036708 | L & T Nails Salon                                    | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036709 | SuperClips   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036710 | Rena's Beauty Salon                                  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036711 | Salon 65   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036712 | A Touch of Heaven Inc                                | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036713 | Salon 27   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036714 | Fun Cuts Salon                                       | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036715 | Nalley Salon   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036716 | Studio 5321 Hair salon                               | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036717 | Wrenn Inc dba Big League Barbers                     | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036718 | The Hair Embassy Beauty Salon                        | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036719 | Nail Fame Salon                                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036720 | Scarlett's Beauty Salon                              | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036721 | The Spa by Southern Aesthetics                       | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036722 | N'Elegence Unisex Salon & Spa                        | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036723 | Extraordinary Hair Salon                             | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036724 | Divine Set Hair Salon                                | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036725 | Oak Tree Salon                                       | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036726 | Pamper Palace Hair Studio Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036727 | Christopher's  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036728 | Bella Dia European Day Spa                           | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036729 | Salon Visage   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036730 | Moon Cosmeotology Salon                              | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036731 | Transitions Salon                                    | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036732 | A New Dawn Hair Salon                                | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036733 | D-Nails Salon  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036734 | Samson's   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036735 | Square One Salon                                     | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036736 | Flamingo Tan and Nails Shop                          | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036737 | Kelly's Salon  | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036738 | JD&E Hair Salon                                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036739 | SmartStyle Salon #10078                              | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036740 | Kim Nails Salon                                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036741 | Ana's Dominican Hair Stylist Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036742 | Executive Styles Salon                               | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036743 | DeMaris's Salon                                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
| COSA036744 | Golightly Family Haircare Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon      |
|            | Young Diva's Sweet Sensation\Little Dude's Ruff &    |                        |
| COSA036745 | Tuff Salon   | Cosmetology Salon      |

|            |   |                   |
|------------|---|-------------------|
| COSA036746 | Total Package Beauty Salon & Spa            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036747 | Dramatic Design                             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036748 | Mitchell Bros Hair Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036749 | Maria's Beauty Shop                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036750 | Nails Boutique Salon                        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036751 | Wendy's Nails Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036752 | Autumn Nails Salon                          | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036753 | B & S Beauty Salon                          | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036754 | New Salon 78,LLC                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036755 | Bliss Salon                                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036756 | The Rhonda W Hamby Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036757 | Titania Hair Salon and Spa                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036758 | Tammy's Shop                                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036759 | Nail Spa Salon                              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036760 | Nail Talk & Tan Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036761 | Styles To Please Beauty Shop                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036762 | T & T Hair Design Studio                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036763 | Titi's Nails                                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036764 | Pure Elegance Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036765 | Headz Up Hair Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036766 | MB Styles Salon                             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036767 | En Style Hair \$ Design Salon               | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036768 | Ever Nails Salon                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036769 | Spa de Vie Salon                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036770 | Massaggio Spa Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036771 | Joseph Kristie Salon                        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036772 | Tangles and Tans Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036773 | Regal Nails Salon                           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036774 | The Spa at Foundry Park Inn                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036775 | Komays Hair Loss Trichology Salon           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036776 | Innovative Hair Salon, LLC                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036777 | Lexington Styles Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036778 | Regal Nail Salon & Spa                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036779 | Studio One LLC Hair Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036780 | Salon Janflo                                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036781 | Great Clips For Hair                        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036782 | Sunset Hair and Nail Salon                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036783 | European Body Wraps -Lithonia Day Spa Salon | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036784 | Da Salon                                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036785 | BeJai's Esthetic Solutions, Salon & Day Spa | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036786 | Hudson's Salon                              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036787 | Strandz Hair Studio, LLC                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036788 | High Maintenance Hair Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036789 | Mandy Nails Salon                           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036790 | Kee-J's Hair Salon - Jerry                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036791 | Beehive Hair Co Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036792 | A Z Nails Salon                             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036793 | Hair & Then Inc dba Salon Picassa           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036794 | The Look Salon & Spa                        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036795 | Nail Gallery Salon                          | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036796 | Nails Optic & Spa Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036797 | Salon Shangri-La                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036798 | The Ritz Salon                              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036799 | 98 Styles Salon                             | Cosmetology Salon |

|            |                                       |                   |
|------------|---------------------------------------|-------------------|
| COSA036800 | Johana's Hair Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036801 | Creative Styles Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036802 | Ermy's Hair Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036803 | Lucky Nails                           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036804 | Walker Classic Salon II               | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036805 | Hello Gorgeous! Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036806 | Momo's Fine Hair Salon/ Barber Shop   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036807 | Justimajanetions Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036808 | Tranquility Salon & Spa               | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036809 | Apex Nails & Spa Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036810 | Classic Nail Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036811 | Angie's Beauty Salon                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036812 | Salon 103 Inc                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036813 | Kaba Hair Braiding Salon              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036814 | LaMesha's Salon & Boutique            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036815 | Signature Nails Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036816 | Total Package Salon & Spa             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036817 | Custom Styles Hair Salon              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036818 | Happy Nail Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036819 | Great Clips #4109                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036820 | Revel Skincare LLC Salon              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036821 | Mirror Images Hair Salon              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036822 | Hair Professional Salon               | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036823 | Hush Salon & Day Spa                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036824 | Tropical Nails & Tan Salon            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036825 | Hair Expertise Beauty Salon           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036826 | Studio Blu Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036827 | New Expressions Barber & Beauty Salon | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036828 | Golden Nail Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036829 | Snip and Tan Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036830 | To Please Hair Salon                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036831 | Mimi's Nails Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036832 | Modern Nails Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036833 | Modern Nails Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036834 | Sport Clips Hair Salon of Cumming     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036835 | Susy's Beauty Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036836 | Lisa Nails Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036837 | Happy Nails Salon, LLC                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036838 | Sheryl's Slim Clippin's Salon         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036839 | Clipper Hair Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036840 | House of Beauty Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036841 | Divine Set Hair Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036842 | Curlz Salon                           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036843 | Chateau De Nails Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036844 | Mom & Me Boutique & Salon Inc         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036845 | USA Nails Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036846 | Hollywood's Hair Boutique Salon       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036847 | Bienvenue Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036848 | Kimberly Kaye Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036849 | Tips, Tangles & Toes Salon            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036850 | Marie's Beauty Salon                  | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036851 | Salon De Belleza Daniela              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036852 | La Mode Nails & Spa Salon             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036853 | On The Move Salon LLC                 | Cosmetology Salon |

|            |  |                   |
|------------|--|-------------------|
| COSA036854 | BRITS SALON                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036855 | Regal Nails                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036856 | Nails Studio Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036857 | Heavenly Creations Beauty Salon        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036858 | Charles Alexander Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036859 | Sula's Hair Beauty Salon Inc.          | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036860 | Sugar Hair Studio Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036861 | Great Clips Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036862 | Great Clips                            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036863 | La Princesa Beauty Salon, inc.         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036864 | Turning Heads Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036865 | Salon de Belleza Yoli's #2             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036866 | Hair World Barber Shop                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036867 | Elements Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036868 | Nail's Q Salon                         | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036869 | Revelation Hair Studio                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036870 | Callaway Gardens Resort Inc            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036871 | The Nail Spa Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036872 | Red Nails Salon                        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036873 | J J Angelina's Inc dba Essentially You | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036874 | Upscale Hair Salon                     | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036875 | Marlene's Cosmetology Shop             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036876 | The Fortunate Lady Beauty Salon        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036877 | Laurie L Family Hair Care Salon LLC    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036878 | Curry's Cuts & Styles Inc              | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036879 | Serendipity Hair Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036880 | Isabella Nails Vision Salon            | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036881 | Tom's Cut and Dry Salon                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036882 | Nail Studio Salon                      | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036883 | American Nail Artist Salon             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036884 | Regal Nails Salon & Spa                | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036885 | Pink Ribbon Hair Salon LLC             | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036886 | Deja Vu Studio Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036887 | Spa Elegance & Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036888 | Improvisations Salon                   | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036889 | Teresa's Hair Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036890 | Bella Hair Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036891 | Dirt Road Beauty Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036892 | The Hair Loft Salon                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036893 | Split Ends Hair Studio Salon           | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036894 | Deborah's Nubiance Salon               | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036895 | Nailport Express Salon                 | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036896 | Felicity's Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036897 | Nail Place Salon                       | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036898 | Extreme Nails & Spa                    | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036899 | Showcase Nails, "The Nail Shop"        | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036900 | Hair Mechanix Design Team Beauty Salon | Cosmetology Salon |
| COSA036901 | Salon 21 Hair Studio LLC               | Cosmetology Salon |
| ES002915   | Kobilis-Isik, Anna Elizabeth           | Esthetician       |
| ES002916   | Moon, Belinda Shane                    | Esthetician       |
| ES002917   | Torrise, Tracy Erin                    | Esthetician       |
| ES002918   | Welch, Judi Chatham                    | Esthetician       |
| ES002919   | Sukoloski, Kayla Denise                | Esthetician       |
| ES002920   | Green, Tiffany Rochelle                | Esthetician       |

|            |                                   |                          |
|------------|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|
| ES002921   | Davis, Nicole Marie               | Esthetician              |
| ES002922   | Moon, Sung Won                    | Esthetician              |
| ES002923   | Mason, Kimara N'Gai               | Esthetician              |
| ES002924   | Tran, Tho Anh                     | Esthetician              |
| ES002925   | Stinson, Leanna K                 | Esthetician              |
| ES002926   | Pierre, Liesl-Jan N               | Esthetician              |
| ES002927   | Syas, Jaunatta Ann                | Esthetician              |
| ES002928   | Mendjargal, Bor                   | Esthetician              |
| ES002929   | Malicka, Ania M                   | Esthetician              |
| ES002930   | Gallishaw, Kayronna               | Esthetician              |
| ES002931   | Hodges-Lee, Diane Marie           | Esthetician              |
| ES002932   | Wilks, Larry Ray                  | Esthetician              |
| ES002933   | Baker, Kristen M                  | Esthetician              |
| ES002934   | Romero, Karen J                   | Esthetician              |
| ES002935   | Hill, Kimberly R                  | Esthetician              |
| ES002936   | Johnson, Tracy L                  | Esthetician              |
| ES002937   | Nguyen, My Dung Thi               | Esthetician              |
| ES002938   | Wallin, Marcella Kathleen         | Esthetician              |
| ES002939   | Doan, Ngoc Thao Thi               | Esthetician              |
| ES002940   | Robison, Jennifer Hope            | Esthetician              |
| ES002941   | Lockhart, N' dine Marianthi Aicha | Esthetician              |
| ES002942   | Selph, Erica M                    | Esthetician              |
| ES002943   | Chico, Robin K                    | Esthetician              |
| ESA000340  | Campbell, Judith Lynn             | Esthetician Apprentice   |
| ESA000341  | Johnson, Apryl J                  | Esthetician Apprentice   |
| ESA000342  | Gaddy, Monica F                   | Esthetician Apprentice   |
| ESA000343  | Ton, Trinh Tu                     | Esthetician Apprentice   |
| ESI-000063 | Kivlin, Anita Karen               | Esthetician Instructor   |
| ESI-000064 | Daly, Traci Anne                  | Esthetician Instructor   |
| HD000005   | Banks, Tonya P                    | Hair Designer            |
| HD000006   | Coleman, Arteria Foster           | Hair Designer            |
| HD000007   | Hong, Jaeok                       | Hair Designer            |
| HD000008   | Chandler, Heather Gee             | Hair Designer            |
| HD000009   | Henley, Shemika Shunta            | Hair Designer            |
| HDA000015  | McFarland, Malorie JoAnn          | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000016  | Horne, Amanda Jean                | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000017  | Quinn, Stephanie Blair            | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000018  | Kregeloh, Michelle Lynne          | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000019  | Barrera, Martha A                 | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000020  | Jones Edmondson, Amanda S         | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000021  | Walden, Rebecca Dahlheimer        | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000022  | Knapp, Julie Noel                 | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000023  | Holland, Terese LaTrell           | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000024  | Harris, Kelly E                   | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000025  | Holt, Jessica Dawn                | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000026  | Blakely, Shannon N                | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| HDA000027  | Cordle, Tabitha Grace             | Hair Designer Apprentice |
| NT013337   | Dinh, Andy                        | Nail Technician          |
| NT013338   | Nguyen, Hong Nga Thi              | Nail Technician          |
| NT013339   | Allen, Brittany Alexis            | Nail Technician          |
| NT013340   | Hester, Heather Michelle          | Nail Technician          |
| NT013341   | Latham, Kristine M                | Nail Technician          |
| NT013342   | Tran, Amy                         | Nail Technician          |
| NT013343   | Chi, Soon Yon                     | Nail Technician          |

|          |                         |                 |
|----------|-------------------------|-----------------|
| NT013344 | Pham, Rena Rose         | Nail Technician |
| NT013345 | Donnette, Tracey Lynn   | Nail Technician |
| NT013346 | Pham, Ngoc H            | Nail Technician |
| NT013347 | Le, Hue Thi             | Nail Technician |
| NT013348 | Ho, Vy Linh Thi         | Nail Technician |
| NT013349 | Phan, Phuong Truc Thi   | Nail Technician |
| NT013350 | Tran, Tu Anh Thi        | Nail Technician |
| NT013351 | Robinson, Sharon S      | Nail Technician |
| NT013352 | Pham, Linh A            | Nail Technician |
| NT013353 | Do, Yen Thu Thi         | Nail Technician |
| NT013354 | Tran, Thanh Phuong Thi  | Nail Technician |
| NT013355 | Tran, Quan Lien         | Nail Technician |
| NT013356 | Nguyen, Donny Minh      | Nail Technician |
| NT013357 | Phan, Long-Tuyen Thi    | Nail Technician |
| NT013358 | Lee, Hee Kyoung         | Nail Technician |
| NT013359 | Nguyen, Kim Thi Thuy    | Nail Technician |
| NT013360 | Tran-Nguyen, Tai Huu    | Nail Technician |
| NT013361 | Nguyen, Truong Quang    | Nail Technician |
| NT013362 | Le, Cathy               | Nail Technician |
| NT013363 | Ho, Giang Thu Vo        | Nail Technician |
| NT013364 | Vo, Cat Dang Thuy       | Nail Technician |
| NT013365 | Bui, Anh Mai Thi        | Nail Technician |
| NT013366 | Truong, Khue Thi        | Nail Technician |
| NT013367 | Doan, Ngoc Thao Thi     | Nail Technician |
| NT013368 | Ngo, Bich Thuy Thi      | Nail Technician |
| NT013369 | Nguyen, Van Khanh       | Nail Technician |
| NT013370 | Trieu, Hoang Phuong Thi | Nail Technician |
| NT013371 | Bakken, Laurecia T      | Nail Technician |
| NT013372 | Bui, Huong Lan Thi      | Nail Technician |
| NT013373 | Le, Kim Yen Thi         | Nail Technician |
| NT013374 | Do, Christopher Phuc    | Nail Technician |
| NT013375 | Tran, Bich Hoa Thi      | Nail Technician |
| NT013376 | Vo, Kim Tuyen Thi       | Nail Technician |
| NT013377 | Chan, Mee Foong         | Nail Technician |
| NT013378 | Nguyen, Thuyet          | Nail Technician |
| NT013379 | Nguyen, Van Thu         | Nail Technician |
| NT013380 | To, Thien Bao Hoang     | Nail Technician |
| NT013381 | Truong, Nga T           | Nail Technician |
| NT013382 | Garrido, Tara A         | Nail Technician |
| NT013383 | Van, Lieu Thu           | Nail Technician |
| NT013384 | Le, Ngoc Mai Thi        | Nail Technician |
| NT013385 | Phan, Luu Q             | Nail Technician |
| NT013386 | Sieu, Cuong Alex        | Nail Technician |
| NT013387 | Oglesby, Melissa Ann    | Nail Technician |
| NT013388 | Nguyen, Anh Thi T       | Nail Technician |
| NT013389 | Duong, Bao Hoai         | Nail Technician |
| NT013390 | Pham, Binh              | Nail Technician |
| NT013391 | Vo, Jenny Xinh          | Nail Technician |
| NT013392 | Nguyen, David Van       | Nail Technician |
| NT013393 | Nguyen, Kim Thanh Thi   | Nail Technician |
| NT013394 | Rolle, Shavonne Daniel  | Nail Technician |
| NT013395 | Nguyen, Bich Thi        | Nail Technician |
| NT013396 | Cheung, Elaine          | Nail Technician |
| NT013397 | Nguyen, Vinh D          | Nail Technician |

|           |                               |                            |
|-----------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|
| NT013398  | Le, My Co T                   | Nail Technician            |
| NTA004174 | Jamison, Trang Le             | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004175 | Nguyen, Phong T               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004176 | Lu, Ky Minh                   | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004177 | Tanner, Diana Little          | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004178 | Ho, An-Di Quoc                | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004179 | Elder, Cheryl L.              | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004180 | Chong, Hyun Chong             | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004181 | Nguyen, Hue T                 | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004183 | Nguyen, Tran N                | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004184 | Nguyen, Nga Thi               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004185 | Jahroh, Jahroh                | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004186 | Bui, Van Cam                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004187 | Muse, Kimberly Michelle       | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004188 | Vo, Kim Hoa Thi               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004189 | Angeloni, Huyen Hoa Thi       | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004190 | Akinrinsade, Abigail Olufunke | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004191 | Nguyen, Hoangna Thi           | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004192 | Griffin, Emily Claire         | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004193 | Thach, Cula Thi               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004194 | Nguyen, Linh Anh Thi          | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004195 | Mach, Hong Tuyet              | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004196 | Hoang, Hoai An Thi            | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004197 | Lim, Wan Yee                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004198 | Dang, Tuyet Thi               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004199 | Huynh, Lan T                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004200 | Nguyen, Hong Nga              | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004201 | Duong, Anh H                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004202 | Dao, Han Mai                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004203 | Nguyen, Cam Tu Thi            | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004204 | Luong, Hung Nguyen            | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004205 | Vu, Chau Hong                 | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004206 | Bui, Chau Diep                | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004207 | Trinh, Ly Thanh Thi           | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004208 | Nguyen, Phuong Ngoc           | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004209 | Zell, Huong                   | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004210 | Tran, Ngoc Dung Thi           | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004211 | Nease, Latain C               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004212 | Truong, Hoa Thi               | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004213 | Tang, Mai Ai                  | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004214 | Mai, Dieu Kim                 | Nail Technician Apprentice |
| NTA004215 | Bradley, Ashley S             | Nail Technician Apprentice |

3. Report of Citations Paid (January 01, 2007 to January 31, 2007):

**Kay Kendrick moved, Cynthia Stein seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to ratify the report as follows:**

| Salon Name                      | License Number | Citation Date | Amount |
|---------------------------------|----------------|---------------|--------|
| Sheila's Talk of the Town Hair  | COSA013836     | 07/28/04      | \$1000 |
| Exquisite Design Hair Salon     | COSA027535     | 07/28/04      | \$1400 |
| Star Nails                      | NTSA003740     | 10/13/05      | \$800  |
| Nail 1 <sup>st</sup> by Heather | NTSA004970     | 12/08/05      | \$500  |
| Hair Cuttery #2611              | COSA025972     | 02/15/06      | \$500  |

|  |            |              |                  |
|--|------------|--------------|------------------|
| Original Nail                          | COSA034223 | 03/07/06     | \$1500.          |
| Heavenly Touch Hair Care Ctr Bty Salon | COSA017531 | 03/30/06     | \$500            |
| Sun Nails Express                      | COSA035172 | 06/30/06     | \$3000           |
| Nail Art Salon                         | COSA035181 | 07/14/06     | \$500            |
| Star Nails                             | NTSA003740 | 08/09/06     | \$600            |
| Nail Network                           | NTSA003883 | 09/18/06     | \$500            |
| J C Nail                               | NTSA003045 | 10/31/06     | \$500            |
| Conchi's Hair Salon                    | COSA030355 | 11/07/06     | \$500            |
| Biby's Salon                           | COSA033318 | 11/14/06     | \$1500           |
| Nail Talk Tan & Spa                    | COSA035143 | 11/28/06     | \$1500           |
| Byron Nails Salon                      | COSA035534 | 12/2006      | \$1000           |
| Nail Plus                              | NTSA002909 | 12/04/06     | \$500            |
| C-K Nails                              | NTSA002143 | 12/05/06     | \$500            |
| Star Nails                             | NTSA002570 | 12/07/06     | \$2500           |
| Nail Illusion                          | NTSA002091 | 12/07/06     | \$1000           |
| Regal Nails                            | NTSA005421 | 12/11/06     | \$500            |
| Nail Design                            | NTSA004324 | 12/11/06     | \$1000           |
| Michelle Brandenburg                   | CO076810   | 12/13/06     | \$500            |
| Inovacion Latina NR.2 Salon            | COSA034784 | 12/13/06     | \$500            |
| Le Nails                               | NTSA005208 | 12/18/06     | \$1500           |
| Lynn Nails                             | NTSA003470 | 12/18/06     | \$500            |
| Long Nails Salon                       | COSA034308 | 12/18/06     | \$1000           |
| Sun Nail Express                       | COSA035172 | 12/19/06     | \$500            |
| 4 Tip to Toe                           | NTSA003499 | 12/19/06     | \$500            |
| Judy's Nail Salon                      | NTSA004404 | 12/19/06     | \$500            |
| Lakeitha's Heavenly Creations          | COSA027019 | 12/20/06     | \$500            |
| July's Hair Salon                      | COSA036101 | 12/20/06     | \$500            |
| LA Nails                               | NTSA004628 | 12/29/06     | \$1000           |
|  |            | <b>Total</b> | <b>\$29,300.</b> |

4. Ms. Surrency distributed to all Board members copies of DOAS Risk Management Services General Liability Agreement.
5. Ms. Surrency advised the Board of the Counts by Profession/Status Report that was included in their packets.
6. Ms. Surrency requested that the Y2007 elections of officers be conducted. **The Board voted unanimously to retain Martha Harris as chairman. The Board voted by majority to retain Cynthia Stein as Vice-Chairman.**

#### **Business Regulation and Inspection Report**

1. Annie Plummer reported that Academy of Hair Arts & Design had been inspected since the last Board meeting.
2. Ms. Plummer reported that schools reporting current instructors totaled 33 with more coming in.
3. Ms. Plummer advised the Board that Azure Spa's Inc, Natural Nails and Strictly Platinum had been reinspected per the Board's request.

4. Ms. Plummer presented 40 Voluntary Cease and Desist Orders issued to unlicensed individuals and/or Salons for the Board to accept.
5. Ms. Plummer reported that 13 complaints have been received since the Board meeting.
6. Ms. Plummer requested clarification from the Board on three issues:
  - (a) Can a spray sterilizer be used to sanitize clipper guards? The Board responded “yes”.
  - (b) Is MMA prohibited from Salons? The Board responded “yes”.
  - (c) Does a “feet washing” business have to be licensed by the Board? The Board responded “It must be licensed as a cosmetology salon”.

**Kay Kendrick** informed the Board that The Academy by Horst, a cosmetology school located in Savannah, has temporarily closed until a new instructor can be hired. She asked Ms. Plummer if she had had any correspondence from the school.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Cynthia Stein seconded and the Board voted unanimously to enter into Executive Session in accordance with O.C.G.A § 43-1-2(k) and 43-1-9(h) to deliberate on applications, enforcement matters and to review information on applications and investigate reports. Voting in favor of the motion were Wanda Brooks, Don Westbrook, John Siggers, Michelle Turley and Betty Carlisle.**

The Board concluded Executive Session in order to vote on these matters and to continue public session.

**Wanda Brooks moved, Betty Carlisle seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the signed consent orders of Paquita Williams d/b/a Sharp Cuts Salon.**

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the application with conviction of JS/COSAPPR attaching a consent order that the license is on probation until 04/13/2009 and the licensee must immediately report any future arrests or convictions.**

**Michelle Turley moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the application with conviction of JW/MASCOS/ attaching a consent order that the license is on probation until 06/20/16 and the licensee must immediately report any future arrests or convictions.**

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the application with conviction of EP/COSAPPR as complete and to issue the license.**

**Kay Kendrick moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the application with conviction of TD/B&B/SAL as complete and to issue the license.**

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously to approve the application with conviction of RM/MASCOS/REIN as complete and to reinstate the license.**

**Don Westbrook moved, Betty Carlisle seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of DC/MASCOS/RECIP attaching a consent order that the license is to be placed on 6 month probation after release and the licensee must immediately report any future arrests or convictions.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of CO/COSAPPR attaching a consent order that the license is on probation until 09/02/2013 and the licensee must immediately report any future arrests or convictions.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Betty Carlisle seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of JM/NT/REIN as complete and to reinstate the license.

**Michelle Turley moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of AS/MASCOS as complete and to issue the license.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of SM/MASCOS attaching a consent order that the license is on probation during licensee incarceration and after release from incarceration until all probation is complete.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of KS/EHS/SAL as complete and to issue the license.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to approve the application with conviction of MB/MASCOS attaching a consent order that the license is on probation until 07/11/2014 and the licensee must immediately report any future arrests or convictions.

**Betty Carlisle moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to accept the Voluntary Cease and Desist Order from: Corey Darnell Thomas, Roberto Gomez, Gwendolyn Robinson, Sandra Ouy, Nekisha Monique Anderson, Laura E. Robledo, Alvino Mack, Mumtaz Alnasir Mohamed, Jose Ivan Robles, Tiffany Lynn Cooley, Yakelina B. Sanchez, Valencia Lorenzo, Marieny Cardona, Zeenat Wise, Tuyen Tho Nguyen, Phuong Pham, Thanh Thao H. Nguyen, Hong T. Mach, Truc Trung Lac, Tran Hua Diep, Loan Kim Nguyen, Ricky Po Yeung, Tram Houng Gebreyesus d/b/a Polish Me Off, Phat Tan Nguyen, Ratha Roeun, Xuot Thi Huynh, Sang T. Tran, Huyen Trang T. Dang, Giang Huong Phan, Lam T. Trinh, Tan Ngoc Thi Dang, Linda Darsey d/b/a Roots 78 Hair Salon, Off the Top Beauty and Barber Shop, Daryl Clark d/b/a Strictly Platinum, Donald Morris d/b/a Pampered You Nail and Hair Salon, Noruca A. Gonzalez d/b/a Tijera De OR02, Marleny Cardona d/b/a Superestino's Salon de Belleza, Joon Ho Park d/b/a Juno Men's Hair Salon and Shalita Richardson d/b/a Rare Essence Hair Salon.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to accept the voluntary cease and desist order presented by enforcement from Maria Estrada d/b/a Salon de Belleza Ochun, case no. COS060523

**Kay Kendrick moved, Cynthia Stein seconded, and the Board voted by majority with Michelle Turley abstaining,** to conduct an investigative interview with the cognizant committee members, the enforcement investigator, legal services attorney and the complainants of case number COS0700886.

**Old Business:**

**Kay Kendrick moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to follow the recommendations of the executive director that board policies are put in rule category order.

The executive director informed the board that she has requested from Washington State the date that they implemented using the NIC written and practical exam but has not received a response.

**New Business:**

Kathleen O'Neal, staff attorney, advised the Board to cease issuance of the hair designer license until the Division Director completes the rule to create a new license setting an expiration date.

**Betty Carlisle moved, Michelle Turley seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to request an additional Board meeting for March 26, 2007 for the purpose of conducting a public hearing for posting of proposed rules revisions.

**Kay Kendrick moved, Betty Carlisle seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to invite Gail Little with Cobb Beauty College to the March 07, 2007 Board meeting.

**Michelle Turley moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to post the rule revisions with changes recommended by the Assistant Attorney General as follows:

**130-2-.01 Application for School License. Amended.**

Any person desiring to operate a school of cosmetology, school of hair design, school of esthetics, or school of nail care in the State of Georgia is required to make application for a license to operate the school, using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology, and show by such application that applicant has met all the requirements of the ~~laws and the requirements~~ rules of the Board. When such application is properly filled out and returned to the Board, it shall be accompanied by the following:

- (a) character references for the persons interested in operating such school;
- (b) a floor plan of the proposed premises drawn to approximate scale, showing the arrangement of the classrooms, locker space, separate rest room facilities for male and female students, approximate placing of equipment, the entrances and exits, ventilation and lighting, and adequacy of floor spaces;
- (c) list of ~~various~~ all items of equipment ~~to be used~~ required by laws and rules;
- (d) satisfactory evidence of proper provisions for duly licensed teachers.
- (e) Each student enrolled shall be supplied with a basic kit for appropriate level of instruction as required by rule (see Administrative Rules 130-3-.01, 130-3-.03, 130-3-.07, 130-3-.10)

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-10, 43-10-11, 43-10-12, and 43-10-13.

### **130-2-.01 Application for School License. Amended.**

Any person desiring to operate a school of cosmetology, school of esthetics, or school of nail care in the State of Georgia is required to make application for a license to operate the school, using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology, and show by such application that applicant has met all the requirements of the law and rules of the Board. When such application is properly filled out and returned to the Board, it shall be accompanied by the following:

- (a) character references for the persons interested in operating such school;
- (b) a floor plan of the proposed premises drawn to approximate scale, showing the arrangement of the classrooms, locker space, separate rest room facilities for male and female students, approximate placing of equipment, the entrances and exits, ventilation and lighting, and adequacy of floor spaces;
- (c) list of all items of equipment required by laws and rules;
- (d) satisfactory evidence of proper provisions for duly - licensed teachers;
- (e) Each student enrolled shall be supplied with a basic kit for appropriate level of instruction as required by rule (see Administrative Rules 130-3-.01, 130-3-.03, 130-3-.07, 130-3-.10).

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-10, 43-10-11, 43-10-12, and 43-10-13.

### **130-2-.02 Preliminary Required Inspections and Licensing. Amended.**

(1) ~~If, upon acceptance of the application examination of such documents and evidence the application provisions prove to be satisfactory, the the acceptance of the application a preliminary inspection of the proposed premises shall be inspected conducted by an inspector for the Board and a Board Member all prior to the acceptance of the application and licensing of the same final inspection and issuance of a license.~~

(2) ~~After applicant has met all Board requirements for facility, equipment, and consumable supplies, A a second final inspection shall be made conducted by an inspector for the Board and a Board member after the equipment has been installed, the facilities are completed and before the school is permitted to begin operation. When the above has been approved Upon approval by the Board, a the appropriate license to conduct shall be issued to operate a school of cosmetology, school of hair design, school of estheticsian school, or school of nail care will be issued, and such The license will be permitted to be retained and renewed only as long as the school continues to meet all of the current requirements laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of CosmetologyState of Georgia cosmetology laws. Such licenses are not transferable from person to person.~~

(3) The Board shall have a reasonable period of time to process any application ~~and its attending documents~~ in order to carry out an investigation for verification of any or all facts stated therein and conduct inspections.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-11, and 43-10-12.

### **130-2-.02 Required Inspections and Licensing. Amended.**

(1) Upon acceptance of the application a preliminary inspection of the proposed premises shall be conducted by an inspector for the Board and a Board Member prior to the final inspection and issuance of a license.

(2) After applicant has met all Board requirements for facility, equipment, and consumable supplies, a final inspection shall be conducted by an inspector for the Board and a Board member. Upon approval by the Board, the appropriate license shall be issued to operate a

school of cosmetology, school of hair design, school of esthetics or school of nail care. The license will be permitted to be retained and renewed only as long as the school continues to meet all of the current laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology. Such licenses are not transferable from person to person.

(3) The Board shall have a reasonable period of time to process any application in order to carry out an investigation for verification of any or all facts stated therein and conduct inspections.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-11, and 43-10-12.

### **130-2-.03 Licensing License to Operate a School, Ownership, or Relocation. Amended.**

(1) A license to operate a school carries with it the approval of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and is valid only for the owner or owners specified on the application for the school and no other person. Any request for expansion, relocation, or change of in the school's name or school's owners location must comply with statutory and regulatory provisions applicable to new schools.

(2) Any person, firm, corporation or establishment which accepts, directly or indirectly, compensation for teaching more than one person any branch of cosmetology will be classified as a school and will be required to comply with all the provisions of the Georgia laws and rules ~~and regulations~~ of the Board.

(3) Any person, firm, corporation or establishment licensed hereunder shall furnish to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology a copy of the school ~~rules and regulations~~ policies and procedures at the time of application for a school license, and in the event any such ~~rules and regulations~~ policies and procedures are thereafter changed, a copy of same shall be filed with the Board.

(4) Each school is required to notify the Board within ten (10) days, in writing, of any change in its supervising instructor or instructors.

(5) Schools shall be required to supply each student with a basic kit containing sufficient implements for the learning of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or manicuring nail technology as listed below and Cosmetology. ~~such schools~~ Schools are required to comply with all sanitation rules adopted by this Board and shall instruct the students in the importance of complying with all sanitary sanitation rules and regulations of this Board (see 130-3-01, 130-3-.03, 130-3-.07, 130-3-.10).

~~(a) The basic kit for cosmetology students shall contain the following:~~

- ~~1. basic combs~~
- ~~2. seissors~~
- ~~3. razor and blades~~
- ~~4. brushes~~
- ~~5. rollers~~
- ~~6. clips~~
- ~~7. comb-out capes~~
- ~~8. perm rod~~
- ~~9. curling iron~~
- ~~10. blow dryer~~
- ~~11. manicuring kit~~
- ~~12. tweezers~~
- ~~13. thinning shears~~
- ~~14. one (1) workbook~~
- ~~15. fumigant for each kit~~
- ~~16. esthetician kit~~

(b) ~~The basic kit for esthetic students shall contain the following:~~

- ~~1. tweezers~~
- ~~2. comedone extractors~~
- ~~3. cleansers~~
- ~~4. liquid and bar soap~~
- ~~5. skin freshners (toners)~~
- ~~6. astringents~~
- ~~7. moisturizers~~
- ~~8. emollient creams~~
- ~~9. foundation~~
- ~~10. corrective sticks~~
- ~~11. blusher~~
- ~~12. lipstick~~
- ~~13. powder~~
- ~~14. eye shadow~~
- ~~15. mascara~~
- ~~16. eyeliners~~
- ~~17. eyebrow pencils~~
- ~~18. sponges~~
- ~~19. standard textbook~~
- ~~20. one (1) workbook~~
- ~~21. fumigant for each kit.~~

(c) ~~The basic kit for manicuring students shall contain the following:~~

- ~~1. closed cotton container~~
- ~~2. manicure tray~~
- ~~3. small glass implements container~~
- ~~4. two (2) emery boards~~
- ~~5. metal pusher~~
- ~~6. manicure scissors~~
- ~~7. buffer~~
- ~~8. orangewood stick~~
- ~~9. cuticle nipper~~
- ~~10. nail file~~
- ~~11. standard textbook~~
- ~~12. one (1) workbook~~
- ~~13. fumigant for kit~~
- ~~14. finger bowl~~
- ~~15. nail brush~~
- ~~16. spatula~~
- ~~17. toe nail clipper.~~

6) All schools of cosmetology, hair design schools, esthetician schools and schools of nail care shall maintain a library which includes at least one each of the following: medical dictionary, book on first aid, book on cosmetic chemistry, history book on hair styles, history book on esthetics, history book on nail care, book on basic nutrition ~~and basic hormones~~, book on theory and practices of beauty culture, book on theory and practices of esthetics, book on theory and practices of nail care, book on personality and charm, book on primary art, sketching, etc., and at least one book on business management.

(7) All schools must be properly lighted and well ventilated.

(8) All schools must have a supply of clean, sanitary drinking water, separate toilet facilities for male and female students, and provide sufficient beauty equipment for the number of students enrolled.

(9) All schools must post the laws and rules and regulations furnished by the Board in an prominent place open area in each school.

(10) When, and if, the school's enrollment increases beyond its capacity of properly caring for the original fifteen (15) students as to classroom, lockers, equipment and floor space, the school shall, for the purpose of good student training, public protection and safety, enlarge such school to meet the needs of the number of students enrolled.

(11) When closing a cosmetology, hair design, esthetics or manicuring nail care, or ~~esthetician~~ school, the Board shall be notified in writing of the closure and all student records shall be released to the Board no later than 30 days prior to the closure date.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-11, 43-10-12, and 43-10-13.

### **130-2-.03 License to Operate a School, Ownership, or Relocation. Amended.**

(1) A license to operate a school carries with it the approval of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and is valid only for the owner or owners specified on the application for the school. Any request for expansion, relocation, or change of in the school's name or school's owners must comply with statutory and regulatory provisions applicable to new schools.

(2) Any person, firm, corporation or establishment which accepts, directly or indirectly, compensation for teaching more than one person any branch of cosmetology will be classified as a school and will be required to comply with all the provisions of the laws and rules of the Board.

(3) Any person, firm, corporation or establishment licensed hereunder shall furnish to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology a copy of the school policies and procedures at the time of application for a school license, and in the event any such policies and procedures are thereafter changed, a copy of same shall be filed with the Board.

(4) Each school is required to notify the Board within ten (10) days, in writing, of any change in its supervising instructor or instructors.

(5) Schools shall be required to supply each student with a basic kit containing sufficient implements for the learning of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technology. Schools are required to comply with all sanitation rules adopted by this Board and shall instruct the students in the importance of complying with all sanitation rules of this Board (see 130-3-01, 130-3-.03, 130-3-.07, 130-3-.10).

(6) All schools of cosmetology, hair design schools, esthetician schools and schools of nail care shall maintain a library which includes at least one each of the following: medical dictionary, book on first aid, book on cosmetic chemistry, history book on hair styles, history book on esthetics, history book on nail care, book on basic nutrition, book on theory and practices of beauty culture, book on theory and practices of esthetics, book on theory and practices of nail care, book on personality and charm, book on primary art, sketching, etc., and at least one book on business management.

(7) All schools must be properly lighted and well ventilated.

(8) All schools must have a supply of clean, sanitary drinking water, separate toilet facilities for male and female students, and provide sufficient beauty equipment for the number of students enrolled.

(9) All schools must post the laws and rules furnished by the Board in an open area in each school.

(10) When, and if, the school's enrollment increases beyond its capacity of properly

caring for the original fifteen (15) students as to classroom, lockers, equipment and floor space, the school shall, for the purpose of good student training, public protection and safety, enlarge such school to meet the needs of the number of students enrolled.

(11) When closing a cosmetology, hair design, esthetics or nail care, school, the Board shall be notified in writing of the closure and all student records shall be released to the Board no later than 30 days prior to the closure date.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-8, 43-10-11, 43-10-12, and 43-10-13.

### **130-2-.06 Student and Apprentice Records.**

~~(1) A weekly work sheet signed in black ink by the student and the instructor or the apprentice and the supervising licensee shall be kept for each student or apprentice indicating the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be subject to review by the inspector at any time.~~ Student Records

(a) A weekly work sheet signed in black ink and or electronic signature by the student and the instructor shall be kept for each student indicating the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and shall be subject to review by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology at any time.

~~(2) (b) Student attendance records, and grades and financial records must shall be maintained in the on school premises by the school as part of the permanent record for each student for a period of five (5) years.~~

~~Licensees who supervise apprentices must maintain records on each apprentice for a period of five (5) years. These records must be accurate, complete, current and available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at all times.~~

~~(3) (c) Progress Reports on students' attendance, and grades and financial status shall be current and submitted by the school to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology each January 1, April 1 and September 1. Progress reports on apprentices' hours of performance and training in the shop or salon shall be submitted to the Board by the supervising licensee on January 1, April 1, and September 1. shall be made available for inspection by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology at all times. Should a student withdraw for any purpose, a notarized transcript of total school hours for that student shall be signed by the school's owner or manager and submitted to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology within thirty (30) days of withdrawal.~~

~~(4) (d) Each school shall have a curriculum guide and lesson plan as used by each instructor for each course taught. Such curriculum guides and lesson plans shall be made available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at all times.~~

(e) Certification of completed training shall be included with the examination application.

#### (2) Apprentice Records

(a) A weekly work sheet completed and signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the apprentice, the salon/shop owner/manager, and the training master shall be kept for each apprentice indicating the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January , April ,June , and September and shall be subject to review and available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at any time.

(b) Salon/shop owners/managers must maintain records on each apprentice for a period of five (5) years. These records must be accurate, complete, and available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at all times.

(c) Should an apprentice change salon/shop or master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician, or nail technician, a notarized transcript of total hours accumulated shall be signed by both the salon/shop owner/manager and the master cosmetologist, hair designer,

esthetician, or nail technician and submitted to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology within thirty (30) days of the change.

(d) Certification of completed training shall be included with the examination application.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-12, 43-10-13, and 43-10-14.

### **130-2-.06 Student and Apprentice Records.**

#### **(1) Student Records**

(a) A weekly work sheet signed in black ink and or electronic signature by the student and the instructor shall be kept for each student indicating the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and shall be subject to review by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology at any time.

(b) Student attendance records and grades shall be maintained on school premises by the school as part of the permanent record for each student for a period of five (5) years.

(c) Progress Reports on students' attendance and grades shall be current and shall be made available for inspection by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology at all times. Should a student withdraw for any purpose, a notarized transcript of total school hours for that student shall be signed by the school's owner or manager and submitted to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology within thirty (30) days of withdrawal.

(d) Each school shall have a curriculum guide and lesson plan used by each instructor for each course taught. Such curriculum guides and lesson plans shall be made available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at all times.

(e) Certification of completed training shall be included with the examination application.

#### **(2) Apprentice Records**

(a) A weekly work sheet completed and signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the apprentice, the salon/shop owner/manager, and the training master shall be kept for each apprentice indicating the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January , April ,June , and September and shall be subject to review and available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at any time.

(b) Salon/shop owners/managers must maintain records on each apprentice for a period of five (5) years. These records must be accurate, complete, and available to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology for inspection at all times.

(c) Should an apprentice change salon/shop or master cosmetologist, hair designer , esthetician, or nail technician, a notarized transcript of total hours accumulated shall be signed by both the salon/shop owner/manager and the master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician, or nail technician and submitted to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology within thirty (30) days of the change.

(d) Certification of completed training shall be included with the examination application.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-12, 43-10-13, and 43-10

### **130-2-.07 Application for Cosmetology License at the Master Cosmetologist, Hair Designer, Esthetician or Nail Technician Level. Amended**

(1) Any person desiring to practice cosmetology at the master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician or nail technician level in the State of Georgia, is required to make application for a license using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and show by such application that applicant has met all the requirements of the laws and the requirements rules of the Board. When such application is properly filled out and returned to the Board, it shall be accompanied by the following:

- (a) ~~If schooling or training was received out of the State of Georgia, certification from the state board of cosmetology, where schooling or training was received, is required. Proof of passing a written and practical examination from Board's designated agent;~~
- (b) required fee;
- (c) any other information requested by the Board required for licensure by law or rule.

Authority O.C.G.A. 43-10-2, 43-10-8, and 43-10-9.

**130-2-.07 Application for Cosmetology License at the Master Cosmetologist, Hair Designer, Esthetician or Nail Technician Level. Amended**

(1) Any person desiring to practice cosmetology at the master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician or nail technician level in the State of Georgia, is required to make application for a license using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and show by such application that applicant has met all the requirements of the laws and the rules of the Board. When such application is properly filled out and returned to the Board, it shall be accompanied by the following:

- (a). Proof of passing a written and practical examination from Board's designated agent;
- (b) required fee;
- (c) any other information requested by the Board required for licensure by law or rule.

Authority O.C.G.A. 43-10-2, 43-10-8, and 43-10-9.

**130-2-.09 Application for Apprentice License Permit. Amended.**

(1) Any person at least 17 years of age desiring to train as an apprentice in a cosmetology, ~~skin care or nail care~~ salon/ shop ~~or salon~~, under the direct supervision of a master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician, or nail technician, who holds a current Georgia license and has been licensed at least thirty-six (36) months, may make application for an apprentice license permit using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) Apprentice hours are accumulated according to the actual number of credit/clock hours of performance and training in the shop or salon after being registered with the Board as an apprentice. It is the responsibility of the salon/shop owner/manager ~~supervising master cosmetologist, esthetician or nail technician~~ to keep an accurate record of the apprentice credit/clock hours. ~~The master shall submit to the Board quarterly reports of credit hours accumulated by the apprentice.~~ Credit WILL NOT be allowed for any hours received prior to registering with the Board. issuance of the apprentice certificate of registration.

Credit hours are defined in Rules 130-3-.023, 130-3-.06 ~~and~~ 130-3-.089 and 130-3-.12.

(3) Apprentice training is required as follows:

**Minimum No. of Months Minimum No. of Hours**

Cosmetologist 18 months and 3,000 hours

Hair Designer 14 months and 2650 hours

Esthetician 18 months and 2,000 hours

Nail Technician 8 months ~~1,000~~ and 1050 hours

(4) Each time the apprentice changes supervising master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician or nail technician, or ~~shop/salon~~ salon/shop; a new application must be filed with the Board office. The salon/shop owner/manager ~~Master~~ must notify the Board that this apprentice is not training in the salon/shop under the master licensee and submit a notarized transcript of total hours accumulated by apprentice within thirty (30) days of termination of the apprenticeship. ~~under them.~~

(5) ~~The maximum time for holding an apprentice license(s) is four (4) years. The apprentice permit may be held for two (2) years and renewed one (1) time only for an additional two (2) years.~~

(6) ~~The master cosmetologist salon/shop owner/manager shall be required to supply each apprentice with the basic materials for the learning of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or manicuring nail technology as listed below: and such~~ The master cosmetologist licensee training the apprentice is required to shall comply with all ~~sanitation~~ rules adopted by ~~this the~~ Board and shall instruct the apprentice in the importance of complying with all the sanitary laws and rules and regulations of this the Board.

(a) The basic equipment and materials for the cosmetology apprentice shall consist of the following:

1. ~~station (dresser with mirror);~~
2. ~~sanitation~~ wet disinfection container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant;
3. ~~basic combs;~~ closed container for storage of disinfected implements
4. ~~seissors;~~ mannequin
5. ~~razor and blades;~~ basic combs
6. ~~brushes;~~ scissors/shears and thinning shears
7. ~~rollers;~~ razor with guard and disposable blades
8. ~~clips;~~ brushes
9. ~~comb-out capes;~~ rollers
10. ~~perm rods;~~ clips
11. ~~curling iron;~~ protective capes
12. ~~blow dryer;~~ disposable neck strips, disposable or reusable gloves
13. ~~tweezers;~~ perm rods and end papers
14. ~~thinning shears;~~ marcel curling iron / flat iron
15. ~~standard textbook;~~ blow dryer
16. ~~one (1) work book;~~ consumable supplies for all hair services, such as hair shampoo, hair spray, conditioners, etc.
17. ~~nail technician materials;~~ consumable supplies for all esthetic services
18. ~~esthetician materials;~~ manicuring kit
19. standard textbook
20. one (1) workbook
21. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
22. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization

(b) The basic equipment and materials kit for the esthetics apprentice shall consist of the following:

1. ~~station;~~ tweezers
2. ~~sanitation container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant;~~ comedone extractors
3. ~~tweezers;~~ cleansers
4. ~~cleanser;~~ liquid soap
5. ~~liquid and bar soap;~~ skin freshners (toners)
6. ~~skin fresheners;~~ astringent
7. ~~astringents;~~ moisturizers
8. ~~comedone extractors;~~ emollient creams
9. ~~moisturizers;~~ foundation
10. ~~emollient creams;~~ concealor
11. ~~foundation;~~ blusher;
12. ~~corrective sticks;~~ lipstick;

13. ~~blusher~~; powder;
  14. ~~lipstick~~; eye shadow;
  15. ~~powder~~; mascara;
  16. ~~eyeshadow~~; eyeliners;
  17. ~~maseara~~; eyebrow pencils;
  18. eye liners; professional pencil sharpener;
  19. ~~eye brow pencils~~; disposable sponges and applicators, q-tips, round cotton pads, rectangular rolled cotton and cotton balls; disposable gloves
  20. sponges; standard textbook
  21. ~~standard textbook~~; one (1) workbook
  22. ~~one (1) workbook~~; a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
  24. one lavatory
  25. one (1) set of facial equipment per each four (4) work stations or positions to include, brushing, vacuum ionization, glass electrode or high frequency galvanic or cathodic current, decrustation machine, spray or mister, one (1) set of facial equipment per each two (2) work stations or positions to include steamer, one magnification lamp and sufficient trays for facial supplies;
  26. one (1) covered container for soiled or disposable towels; also closed container for soiled linens
  27. one (1) properly lighted make up area
  28. one (1) head form
  29. wet sterilizer
  30. closed cabinet for clean linen
  31. one (1) facial chair
  32. autoclave sterilizer is an acceptable method of sterilization
- (c) The basic ~~materials~~ equipment and kit for the nail technician apprentice ~~manicuring, pedicuring, and sculptured nails~~ shall consist of the following:
1. ~~station with adequate light~~; nail station and chair with adequate light
  2. ~~sanitation container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant~~; proper paraffin wax machine and paraffin wax
  3. ~~closed cotton container~~; uv gel light
  4. ~~manicure tray~~; wet disinfection container for complete submersion of sanitized implements
  5. ~~two (2) emery boards~~; sealed container for storage of disinfected implements
  6. ~~metal pusher~~; supply tray
  7. ~~manicure seissor~~; finger bowl with nail brush
  8. ~~buffer~~; closed container with cotton
  9. ~~orangewood sticks~~; nail implements (disinfection required)
    - a. steel cuticle pusher
    - b. metal nail file
    - c. manicure scissors
    - d. cuticle nippers
    - e. acrylic nippers
    - f. fingernail clipper
    - g. toenail clipper
    - h. spatula
    - i. tweezers and metal tongs
  10. ~~cuticle and acrylic nippers~~; nail care supplies (disposable items)
    - a. emery boards
    - b. nail buffers

- c. orangewood sticks
- d. foot file or paddle
- e. pedicure slippers
- f. toe separators
- 11. nail file; nail polish
- a. colored nail enamel
- b. base coat and top coat
- 12. finger bowl; polish remover
- 13. nail brush; cuticle remover and cuticle oil
- 14. spatula; hand cream
- 15. toenail clipper; mannequin hand and/or practice fingers
- 16. materials for artificial nail applications for the following; materials for acrylic sculptured nails
- 17. nail polish; pedicure supplies:
  - a. footbath
  - b. antiseptic foot spray
  - c. liquid soap
  - d. massage lotion
  - (i) sculpted nails;
  - (ii) silk nail wraps.
  - (i) colored;
  - (ii) base and topcoats.
- 18. cuticle conditioner and cuticle oil; standard textbook
- 19. standard textbook; one (1) workbook
- 20. one (1) workbook; a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
- 21. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization
- (d) The basic equipment and kit for the hair designer apprentice shall consist of the following:
  - 1. station with mirror;
  - 2. wet disinfection container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant;
  - 3. closed container for storage of disinfected implements
  - 4. mannequin
  - 5. basic combs
  - 6. scissors/shears and thinning shears
  - 7. razor with guard and disposable blades
  - 8. brushes
  - 9. rollers
  - 10. clips
  - 11. protective capes
  - 12. disposable neck strips, disposable or reusable gloves
  - 13. perm rods and end papers
  - 14. marcel curling iron/ flat iron
  - 15. blow dryer
  - 16. consumable supplies for all hair services, such as hair shampoo, hair spray, conditioners, etc.
  - 17. standard textbook
  - 18. one (1) workbook
  - 19. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of

## Cosmetology

20. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization

~~17. A current copy of the laws, rules, and regulations of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology~~ Apprenticeship training shall include the curriculum required for students in the respective levels of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technician.

~~18. Apprenticeship training shall include the curriculum required for students in the respective levels of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technician.~~

(7) ~~18.~~ Apprenticeship training shall include the curriculum required for students at in the respective levels of cosmetology. ~~in the respective levels of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technician~~ technology.

~~(8) A student enrolled in a Board approved school prior to July 1, 2000 may register with the Board as an apprentice for the purpose of earning additional credit hours required by law after July 1, 2000, if the student satisfies all of the following conditions:~~

~~(a) the student has graduated from a Board approved school; and~~

~~(b) the student has completed the total number of school credit hours that were required prior to July 1, 2000 to become licensed as an esthetician or nail technician in Georgia; and~~

~~(c) the student is required by law to complete additional credit hours to be eligible for examination in Georgia; and~~

~~(d) the student registers with the Board as an apprentice, and substantially complies with the provisions of this Rule with the exception of paragraph three (3) regarding the maximum number of hours for apprenticeship training; and~~

~~(e) the additional credit hours earned by the student while registered as an apprentice shall:~~

~~1. comply with the curriculum stated in the Rules for obtaining an esthetician or nail technician license; and~~

~~2. be completed in no more than four (4) months from the date of registration by the student as an apprentice; and~~

~~3. total no less than 250 additional credit hours in esthetics or total no less than 205 additional hours in nail care.~~

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9, 43-10-12, 43-10-13, and 43-10-14.

### **130-2-.09 Application for Apprenticeship Permit. Amended.**

(1) Any person at least 17 years of age desiring to train as an apprentice in a cosmetology, salon/ shop under the direct supervision of a master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician, or nail technician, who holds a current Georgia license and has been licensed at least thirty-six (36) months, may make application for an apprenticeship permit using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) Apprenticeship hours are accumulated according to the actual number of credit/clock hours of performance and training in the shop or salon after being registered with the Board as an apprentice. It is the responsibility of the salon/shop owner/manager to keep an accurate record of the apprenticeship credit/clock hours. Credit WILL NOT be allowed for any hours received prior to issuance of the apprenticeship certificate of registration. Credit hours are defined in Rules 130-3-.03, 130-3-.06, 130-3-.09 and 130-3-.12.

(3) Apprenticeship training is required as follows:

#### **Minimum No. of Months Minimum No. of Hours**

Cosmetologist 18 months and 3,000 hours

Hair Designer 14 months and 2650 hours

Esthetician 18 months and 2,000 hours

Nail Technician 8 months and 1050 hours

(4) Each time the apprentice changes supervising master cosmetologist, hair designer, esthetician, nail technician, or salon/shop; a new application must be filed with the Board office. The salon/shop owner/manager must notify the Board that this apprentice is not training in the salon/shop under the master licensee and submit a notarized transcript of total hours accumulated by apprentice within thirty (30) days of termination of the apprenticeship.

(5) The apprentice permit may be held for two (2) years and renewed one (1) time only for an additional two (2) years.

(6) The salon/shop owner/manager shall be required to supply each apprentice with the basic materials for the learning of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technology as listed below: The master licensee training the apprentice shall comply with all rules adopted by the Board and shall instruct the apprentice in the importance of complying with all the laws and rules the Board.

(a) The basic equipment and materials for the cosmetology apprentice shall consist of the following:

1. station with mirror;
2. wet disinfection container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant;
3. closed container for storage of disinfected implements
4. mannequin
5. basic combs
6. scissors/shears and thinning shears
7. razor with guard and disposable blades
8. brushes
9. rollers
10. clips
11. protective capes
12. disposable neck strips, disposable or reusable gloves
13. perm rods and end papers
14. marcel curling iron / flat iron
15. blow dryer
16. consumable supplies for all hair services, such as hair shampoo, hair spray, conditioners, etc.
17. consumable supplies for all esthetic services
18. manicuring kit
19. standard textbook
20. one (1) workbook
21. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
22. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization

(b) The basic equipment and kit for the esthetics apprentice shall consist of the following:

1. tweezers
2. comedone extractors
3. cleansers
4. liquid soap
5. skin fresheners (toners)
6. astringent
7. moisturizers
8. emollient creams
9. foundation

10. concealer
  11. blusher;
  12. lipstick;
  13. powder;
  14. eye shadow;
  15. mascara;
  16. eyeliners;
  17. eyebrow pencils;
  18. professional pencil sharpener;
  19. disposable sponges and applicators, q-tips, round cotton pads, rectangular rolled cotton and cotton balls; disposable gloves
  20. standard textbook
  21. one (1) workbook
  22. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
  24. one lavatory
  25. one (1) set of facial equipment per each four (4) work stations or positions to include, brushing, vacuum ionization, glass electrode or high frequency galvanic or cathodic current, decrustation machine, spray or mister, one (1) set of facial equipment per each two (2) work stations or positions to include steamer, one magnification lamp and sufficient trays for facial supplies;
  26. one (1) covered container for soiled or disposable towels; also closed container for soiled linens;
  27. one (1) properly lighted make up area;
  28. one (1) head form;
  29. wet sterilizer;
  30. closed cabinet for clean linen;
  31. one (1) facial chair;
  32. autoclave sterilizer is an acceptable method of sterilization;
- (c) The basic equipment and kit for the nail technician apprentice; shall consist of the following:
1. nail station and chair with adequate light
  2. paraffin wax machine and paraffin wax
  3. uv gel light
  4. wet disinfection container for complete submersion of sanitized implements
  5. sealed container for storage of disinfected implements
  6. supply tray
  7. finger bowl with nail brush
  8. closed container with cotton
  9. nail implements (disinfection required)
    - a. steel cuticle pusher
    - b. metal nail file
    - c. manicure scissors
    - d. cuticle nippers
    - e. acrylic nippers
    - f. fingernail clipper
    - g. toenail clipper
    - h. spatula
    - i. tweezers and metal tongs
  10. nail care supplies (disposable items)
    - a. emery boards

- b. nail buffers
- c. orangewood sticks
- d. foot file or paddle
- e. pedicure slippers
- f. toe separators
- 11. nail polish
  - a. colored nail enamel
  - b. base coat and top coat
- 12. polish remover
- 13. cuticle remover and cuticle oil
- 14. hand cream
- 15. mannequin hand and/or practice fingers
- 16. materials for acrylic sculptured nails
- 17. pedicure supplies:
  - a. footbath
  - b. antiseptic foot spray
  - c. liquid soap
  - d. massage lotion
- 18. standard textbook
- 19. one (1) workbook
- 20. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
- 21. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization
  - (d) The basic equipment and kit for the hair designer apprentice shall consist of the following:
    - 1. station with mirror;
    - 2. wet disinfection container which allows for complete submersion of cosmetology implements in a hospital grade disinfectant;
    - 3. closed container for storage of disinfected implements
    - 4. mannequin
    - 5. basic combs
    - 6. scissors/shears and thinning shears
    - 7. razor with guard and disposable blades
    - 8. brushes
    - 9. rollers
    - 10. clips
    - 11. protective capes
    - 12. disposable neck strips, disposable or reusable gloves
    - 13. perm rods and end papers
    - 14. marcel curling iron/ flat iron
    - 15. blow dryer
    - 16. consumable supplies for all hair services, such as hair shampoo, hair spray, conditioners, etc.
    - 17. standard textbook
    - 18. one (1) workbook
    - 19. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
    - 20. autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization
    - 21. Apprentice training shall include the curriculum required for students in the respective levels of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technology., or nail technology.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9, 43-10-12, 43-10-13, and 43-10-14.

**130-2-.11 Application for Cosmetology Salon/Shop. Amended.**

(1) Any person or persons desiring to operate a salon/shop which offers and performs cosmetology services shall submit an application for a license using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and shall meet all the requirements of the law and ~~the requirements~~ rules of the Board.

(2) Any salon/shop must be registered with the Board prior to its opening.

Change of salon /shop ownership or change in the tenant leasing must be registered with the Board by filing an application for licensure within thirty (30) days of the purchase of said salon /shop. Business names of salon/shop shall include the word salon or shop and shall not contain terms which would tend to mislead the public as to the operation of cosmetology establishment.

(3) The salon/shop license shall be displayed in ~~the reception~~ an open area of the registered salon/shop so as to be easily read by customers and available for inspection by the Board at all times.

(4) It shall be prohibited to allow pets in salons/shops except guide and assistance dogs as permitted under Title 30 Of the Georgia Code.

(5) Salons/shops shall comply with the rules for sanitation, health and disinfectants in Chapter 130-5 of the Rules of Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8, and 43-10-11.

**130-2-.11 Application for Cosmetology Salon/Shop. Amended.**

(1) Any person or persons desiring to operate a salon/shop which offers and performs cosmetology services shall submit an application for a license using the form furnished by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology and shall meet all the requirements of the law and rules of the Board.

(2) Any salon/shop must be registered with the Board prior to its opening.

Change of salon /shop ownership or change in the tenant leasing must be registered with the Board by filing an application for licensure within thirty (30) days of the purchase of said salon /shop. Business names of salon/shop shall include the word salon or shop and shall not contain terms which would tend to mislead the public as to the operation of cosmetology establishment.

(3) The salon/shop license shall be displayed in an open area of the registered salon/shop so as to be easily read by customers and available for inspection by the Board at all times.

(4) It shall be prohibited to allow pets in salons/shops except guide and assistance dogs as permitted under Title 30 Of the Georgia Code.

(5) Salons/shops shall comply with the rules for sanitation, health and disinfectants in Chapter 130-5 of the Rules of Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8, and 43-10-11.

**130-2-.12 Continuing Education. Amended.**

(1) Number of Continuing Education Hours Required for Renewal or Reinstatement of License.

(a) Renewal after January 1, 2003. In order to renew a license after January 1, 2003, each licensee shall provide to the Board proof of completion of five (5) continuing education (CE) hours in a form acceptable to the Board. If audited, the licensee shall submit written proof from the CE provider of attendance and/or completion of each CE course submitted

for credit.

1. Three (3) hours of the total five (5) hours must be satisfied by a course in health and safety developed by the Department of Technical and Adult Education (DTAE).
2. Two (2) hours of the total five (5) hours must be in a course previously registered with the Board in any of the following areas: industry or trade show, health and safety, industry trends, computer skills, business management, or the licensee's area of practice.

(b) Exemption from CE Requirements.

1. A licensee that meets any of the following exemptions shall not be required to complete the CE requirements set out in this Rule;
    - (i) Licensees who have held a license for 25 years or more and can submit documentation thereof to the satisfaction of the Board;
    - (ii) Licensees who submit to the Board proof of hardship based upon:
      - (I) Age; proof of attainment of age 65;
      - (II) Disability, medical or otherwise; a documented permanent disability, copy of an award letter of disability benefits such as Social Security, Railroad retirement or DD214;
      - (III) Illness; or temporary disability documented by the appropriate physician specialist stating the disability, anticipated duration and physical or mental limitation(s);
      - (IV) Other circumstances as the Board may determine on a case by case basis.
  2. Licensees who claim an exemption shall submit to the Board a sworn, written statement, signed by the licensee before a notary public, setting out the facts supporting each exemption claimed. An exemption request form may be obtained from the Board or a written request may be submitted in a form otherwise acceptable to the Board.
- (c) First Renewal of License. The holder of a license who is renewing a license for the first time shall not be required to meet the CE requirements.
- (d) Reinstatement of a lapsed license. In order to reinstate a license after expiration, the applicant shall pay all fees required by law or rule, including the reinstatement fee, and shall submit documentation of completion of all CE hours required for renewal. ~~since the date of expiration.~~ A license shall be issued upon completion of all requirements of the laws and rules and O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-9 and 43-10-10.

~~(e) Rollover of CE Credits.~~

- ~~1. Master Cosmetologists: For the first license renewal period after January 1, 2003, the Board shall allow a maximum of five (5) hours credit for any CE courses taken between March 31, 2000 and January 1, 2002. Thereafter, no excess CE hours shall be credited toward the CE requirement for any other renewal period.~~
- ~~2. Nail Technicians: For the first license renewal period after January 1, 2003, the Board shall allow a maximum of five (5) hours credit for any CE courses taken between August 31, 1999 and January 1, 2002. Thereafter, no excess CE hours shall be credited toward the CE requirement for any other renewal period.~~
- ~~3. Estheticians: For the first license renewal period after January 1, 2003, the Board shall allow a maximum of five (5) hours credit for any CE courses taken between August 31, 1999 and January 1, 2002. Thereafter, no excess CE hours shall be credited toward the CE requirement for any other renewal period.~~

(e). CE Requirements For Hair Designers: For the first license renewal period after September 1, 2010, the Board shall allow a maximum of five (5) hours credit for any CE courses taken between August 31, 2006 and September 30, 2008.

(2) Provider Registration of Continuing Education Courses.

(a) The curriculum of any CE course not developed by the DTAE or not offered as a course by any of the institutions listed in paragraph (2)(e) of this Rule must be registered with the Board and must comply with Board rules.

(b) Industry or trade show registration. Providers of industry or trade show courses that wish to register courses for CE credit must supply the following information to the Board prior to registration:

1. Date and location;
2. Form to be used as written proof of course attendance or completion for licensee participants.

(c) Course of study registration. Providers of courses of study that wish to register courses for CE credit must submit the following information to the Board prior to registration:

1. Outline of subject matter;
2. List of persons teaching;
3. Summary of qualification of teachers;
4. Number of hours for each course;
5. Date and location of course;
6. Form to be used as written proof of course completion for licensee participants.
7. Course evaluation form

(d) Internet, electronic or home study course. Providers of Internet, electronic or home study courses must submit the same ~~or substantially equivalent~~ information for registration with the Board as the providers of courses listed in paragraph (2)(c) of this Rule.

(e) Exempt courses. Courses in cosmetology, hair design, nail technology, esthetics, computers, business, or health and safety issues offered by schools under the jurisdiction of the Board of Regents of the University System of Georgia, the Department of Technical and Adult Education, the Department of Education, or any accredited postsecondary institution shall satisfy the continuing education requirement without a request to the Board for approval or registration.

(f) The curriculum developed by DTAE in health and safety shall be revised as necessary to incorporate new developments upon request by the Board, interested parties or licensees. DTAE shall make the curriculum available to other providers of continuing education.

(g) Requirements for all course providers.

1. No private providers shall represent themselves as the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology or the Georgia Office of the Secretary of State. The prohibition against such representations shall include all promotional material including, but not limited to, provider name, course or business name, websites, advertisements, e-mails or mailings.
2. No testing of knowledge or skills shall be required as proof of completion of any CE course.
3. All licensees shall receive written proof from the course provider of attendance and completion of a CE course. The provider's registration number issued by the Board must be included on the certificate of completion.

(3) CE Courses Not Registered With the Board. Any licensee may request Board approval of an unregistered industry or trade show or other unregistered course of study for CE credit. The Board, in its discretion, may approve such course on a case by case basis. All licensees shall receive written proof of attendance and/or completion of CE courses from the provider; and the licensee shall submit such proof to the Board.

(4) Private providers of continuing education courses must include their registration number issued by the Board on all promotional material including, but not limited to information about courses, websites, advertisements, emails or mailings.

(5) CE providers must renew their registration by submitting a new CE provider application to the board beginning April of an even year.

### **130-2-.12 Continuing Education. Amended.**

(1) Number of Continuing Education Hours Required for Renewal or Reinstatement of License.

(a) Renewal after January 1, 2003. In order to renew a license after January 1, 2003, each licensee shall provide to the Board proof of completion of five (5) continuing education (CE) hours in a form acceptable to the Board. If audited, the licensee shall submit written proof from the CE provider of attendance and/or completion of each CE course submitted for credit.

1. Three (3) hours of the total five (5) hours must be satisfied by a course in health and safety developed by the Department of Technical and Adult Education (DTAE).

2. Two (2) hours of the total five (5) hours must be in a course previously registered with the Board in any of the following areas: industry or trade show, health and safety, industry trends, computer skills, business management, or the licensee's area of practice.

(b) Exemption from CE Requirements.

1. A licensee that meets any of the following exemptions shall not be required to complete the CE requirements set out in this Rule;

(i) Licensees who have held a license for 25 years or more and can submit documentation thereof to the satisfaction of the Board;

(ii) Licensees who submit to the Board proof of hardship based upon:

(I) Age; proof of attainment of age 65;

(II) Disability, medical or otherwise; a documented permanent disability, copy of an award letter of disability benefits such as Social Security, Railroad retirement or DD214;

(III) Illness; or temporary disability documented by the appropriate physician specialist stating the disability, anticipated duration and physical or mental limitation(s);

(IV) Other circumstances as the Board may determine on a case by case basis.

2. Licensees who claim an exemption shall submit to the Board a sworn, written statement, signed by the licensee before a notary public, setting out the facts supporting each exemption claimed. An exemption request form may be obtained from the Board or a written request may be submitted in a form otherwise acceptable to the Board.

(c) First Renewal of License. The holder of a license who is renewing a license for the first time shall not be required to meet the CE requirements.

(d) Reinstatement of a lapsed license. In order to reinstate a license after expiration, the applicant shall pay all fees required by law or rule, including the reinstatement fee, and shall submit documentation of completion of all CE hours required for renewal. A license shall be issued upon completion of all requirements of the laws and rules.

(e) CE Requirements For Hair Designers: For the first license renewal period after September 1, 2010, the Board shall allow a maximum of five (5) hours credit for any CE courses taken between August 31, 2006 and September 30, 2008.

(2) Provider Registration of Continuing Education Courses.

(a) The curriculum of any CE course not developed by the DTAE or not offered as a course by any of the institutions listed in paragraph (2)(e) of this Rule must be registered with the Board and must comply with Board rules.

(b) Industry or trade show registration. Providers of industry or trade show courses that wish to register courses for CE credit must supply the following information to the Board prior to registration:

1. Date and location;

2. Form to be used as written proof of course attendance or completion for licensee participants.

(c) Course of study registration. Providers of courses of study that wish to register

courses for CE credit must submit the following information to the Board prior to registration:

1. Outline of subject matter;
2. List of persons teaching;
3. Summary of qualification of teachers;
4. Number of hours for each course;
5. Date and location of course;
6. Form to be used as written proof of course completion for licensee participants.
7. Course evaluation form

(d) Internet, electronic or home study course. Providers of Internet, electronic or home study courses must submit the same information for

registration with the Board as the providers of courses listed in paragraph (2)(c) of this Rule.

(e) Exempt courses. Courses in cosmetology, hair design, nail technology, esthetics, computers, business, or health and safety issues offered by schools under the jurisdiction of the Board of Regents of the University System of Georgia, the Department of Technical and Adult Education, the Department of Education, or any accredited postsecondary institution shall satisfy the continuing education requirement without a request to the Board for approval or registration.

(f) The curriculum developed by DTAE in health and safety shall be revised as necessary to incorporate new developments upon request by the Board, interested parties or licensees. DTAE shall make the curriculum available to other providers of continuing education.

(g) Requirements for all course providers.

1. No private providers shall represent themselves as the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology or the Georgia Office of the Secretary of State. The prohibition against such representations shall include all promotional material including, but not limited to, provider name, course or business name, websites, advertisements, e-mails or mailings.
2. No testing of knowledge or skills shall be required as proof of completion of any CE course.
3. All licensees shall receive written proof from the course provider of attendance and completion of a CE course. The provider's registration number issued by the Board must be included on the certificate of completion.

(3) CE Courses Not Registered With the Board. Any licensee may request Board approval of an unregistered industry or trade show or other unregistered course of study for CE credit. The Board, in its discretion, may approve such course on a case by case basis. All licensees shall receive written proof of attendance and/or completion of CE courses from the provider; and the licensee shall submit such proof to the Board.

(4) Private providers of continuing education courses must include their registration number issued by the Board on all promotional material including, but not limited to information about courses, websites, advertisements, emails or mailings.

(5) CE providers must renew their registration by submitting a new CE provider application to the board beginning April of an even year.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, and 43-10-10.

### **130-3-.02 Cosmetology School Curriculum. Amended.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of cosmetology for a complete course of a minimum of nine (9) months and fifteen hundred (1,500) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a) Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain **250** total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, of which 200 hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, fifteen (15) hours shall be on skin care, ten (10) hours on nail care, and the final 25 hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour for the first 250 hours of training.

### **Level 1**

1. Theory **=(50)**— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to cosmetology:)

- (i) chemistry;
- (ii) sanitation and sterilization;
- (iii) introduction to skin care and nail care.
- (iv) EPA; OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;
- (v) AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.

2. Theory of Permanent Waving **=(20)**— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its reaction;
- (ii) the chemistry of relaxers and its reaction
- (iii) the principles of permanent wave rod placement.

3. Theory of Hair Coloring **=(45)**— (45 credit hours/45 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) chemistry of color;
- (ii) principles of color application;
- (iii) the chemical action of hair color.

4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning **=(20)**— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) hair analysis;
- (ii) scalp condition;
- (iii) treatments;
- (iv) analysis, condition and treatments ~~especially in regard to braiding.~~

5. Theory of Hair cutting **=(30)**— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:)

- (i) proper handling and care of instruments.

6. Theory of Shampooing **=(15)**— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:)

- (i) proper procedure of shampooing;
- (ii) knowledge of shampoo formulas;
- (iii) water temperature.

7. Theory of Hairdressing ~~(including braiding)~~ **=(45)**— (45 credit hours/45 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:)

- (i) 20 hours training on mannequins;
- (ii) 25 hours training on live models (without compensation).

8. Theory of Nail Care and Skin Care **=(25)**— (25 credit hours/25 clock hours.)

- (i) concepts and principles of nail care procedures and correct handling of instruments -- (10 credit hours/10 clock hours);
- (ii) concepts and principles of skin care procedures and techniques — (15 credit hours/15 clock hours):

## **LEVEL 1 total: 250**

(b)When student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS (~~250~~ CLOCK HOURS) OF

**Level 1** TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Theory ~~=~~**(100)**— (100 credit hours/~~100~~ clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:)

(i)sterilization and sanitation;

(ii)physiology;

(iii)electricity;

(iv)safety precautions;

(v)chemistry of beauty products, actions, ~~l~~ reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes and bleaches;

(vi)salesmanship;

(vii)telephone ~~conversation~~ etiquette and ethics;

(viii)salon deportment: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.

2. Social Skills, reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board of Cosmetology Laws and Rules ~~Rules and Regulations and Laws~~ ~~=~~**(50)**— (50 credit hours/~~50~~ clock hours.)

3. Laboratory~~=~~**(50)** — (50 credit hours/~~50~~ clock hours:) Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tint and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.

4. Hairdressing, Shampoo and Comb-out ~~=~~**(280)**— 280 credit hours) Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconditioner, finger waving, wet curls, thermocurling, blow drying, hair styles, combouts and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals; ~~and braiding the hair by hairweaving; interlocking, twisting, plaiting; wrapping by hand, chemical or mechanical devices; or using natural or synthetic fiber for extensions to the hair.~~

5. Hair Cutting and Shaping ~~=~~**(125)**— (125 credit hours (~~166~~ applications):)

6. Permanent Waving ~~=~~**(180)**— (180 credit hours (~~60~~ applications):)

7. Chemical Hair Relaxing ~~=~~**(100)**— (100 credit hours (~~50~~ applications):)

8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening ~~=~~**(140)**— (140 credit hours: Shall include the following:)

(i)temporary ~~color~~ rinses and semi permanent color — (10 credit hours (~~40~~ 12 applications);

(ii)hair lightening — (25 credit hours (~~10~~ applications);

(iii)virgin tints — (40 credit hours (~~20~~ applications);

(iv)retouches — (60 credit hours (~~30~~ applications);

(v)predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;

(vi)dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours.

9. Scalp and Hair Treatment ~~to include braiding~~ ~~=~~**(50)**— (50 credit hours (~~66~~ applications) which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, reconditioning treatments, ~~and treatments pertaining to braiding.~~

10. Facial Treatment, Make-up and Hair Removal ~~=~~**(55)**— (55 credit hours:)

(i)facial treatments — (30 credit hours/~~30~~ applications);

(ii)make-up ~~treatments~~ applications— (20 credit hours/~~to~~ applications);

(iii)brow and lash tint — (5 credit hours/~~5~~ applications):

11. Hair Removal=**(30)** — (30 credit hours::)
  - (i)lip, chin and face — (10 credit hours//20 applications);
  - (ii)brow tweezing — (10 credit hours//20 applications);
  - (iii)brow waxing — (10 credit hours//20 applications)-
12. Manicures, Pedicures and Nail Sculpting =**(90)**— (90 credit hours::)
  - (i)manicures with hand and forearm massage — (25 credit hours//25 applications);
  - (ii)pedicures with foot and leg massage — (20 credit hours//20 applications);
  - (iii)nail sculpting — (45 credit hours//15 applications)-

## **Level 2 Total Hours: 1500**

Total Hours: 1,500 credit hours/1,500 clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. ~~43-10-1~~, 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.02 Cosmetology School Curriculum. Amended.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of cosmetology for a complete course of a minimum of nine (9) months and fifteen hundred (1,500) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a)Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain **250** total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, of which 200 hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, fifteen (15) hours shall be on skin care, ten (10) hours on nail care, and the final 25 hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour for the first 250 hours of training.

#### **Level 1**

1. Theory =**(50)**— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to cosmetology:)
  - (i)chemistry;
  - (ii)sanitation and sterilization;
  - (iii)introduction to skin care and nail care.
  - (iv)EPA;OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;
  - (v)AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.
2. Theory of Permanent Waving = **(20)**— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
  - (i)the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its reaction;
  - (ii)the chemistry of relaxers and its reaction
  - (iii)the principles of permanent wave rod placement.
3. Theory of Hair Coloring =**(45)**— (45 credit hours/45 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
  - (i)chemistry of color;
  - (ii)principles of color application;
  - (iii)the chemical action of hair color.
4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning =**(20)**— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours:) Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
  - (i)hair analysis;
  - (ii)scalp condition;
  - (iii)treatments;

(iv)analysis, condition and treatments .

5.Theory of Hair cutting =(30)— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:)

(i)proper handling and care of instruments.

6. Theory of Shampooing =(15)— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:)

(i)proper procedure of shampooing;

(ii)knowledge of shampoo formulas;

(iii)water temperature.

7. Theory of Hairdressing (45)— (45 credit hours/45 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:)

(i)20 hours training on mannequins;

(ii)25 hours training on live models (without compensation).

8. Theory of Nail Care and Skin Care =(25)— (25 credit hours/25 clock hours.)

(i)concepts and principles of nail care procedures and correct handling of instruments -- (10 credit hours/10 clock hours);

(ii)concepts and principles of skin care procedures and techniques — (15 credit hours/15 clock hours) :

### **LEVEL 1 total: 250**

(b)When student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS /250 CLOCK HOURS OF **Level 1 TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:**

1.Theory =(100)— (100 credit hours/100 clock hours: Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:)

(i)sterilization and sanitation;

(ii)physiology;

(iii)electricity;

(iv)safety precautions;

( v)chemistry of beauty products, actions / reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes and bleaches;

(vi)salesmanship;

(vii)telephone n etiquette and ethics;

(viii)salon deportment: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.

2. Social Skills, reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board of Cosmetology Laws and Rules =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours.)

3. Laboratory=(50) — (50 credit hours/50 clock hours:) Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tint and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.

4. Hairdressing, Shampoo and Comb-out =(280)— 280 credit hours) Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconitioner, finger waving, wet curls, thermocurling, blow drying, hair styles, combouts and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals; 5. Hair Cutting and Shaping =(125)— (125 credit hours /166 applications)

6. Permanent Waving =(180)— (180 credit hours /60 applications)-

7. Chemical Hair Relaxing =(100)— (100 credit hours /50 applications)-

8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening =(140)— (140 credit hours: Shall include the following:)

- (i)temporary rinses and semi permanent color — (10 credit hours /12 applications);
- (ii)hair lightening — (25 credit hours /10 applications);
- (iii)virgin tints — (40 credit hours /20 applications);
- (iv)retouches — (60 credit hours /30 applications);
- (v)predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;
- (vi)dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours.

9. Scalp and Hair Treatment =(50)— (50 credit hours /66 applications) which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, reconditioning treatments,

10. Facial Treatment, Make-up and Hair Removal =(55) — (55 credit hours);

- (i)facial treatments — (30 credit hours/30 applications);
- (ii)make-up applications— (20 credit hours/to applications);
- (iii)brow and lash tint — (5 credit hours/5 applications);

11. Hair Removal=(30) — (30 credit hours);

- (i)lip, chin and face — (10 credit hours/20 applications);
- (ii)brow tweezing — (10 credit hours/20 applications);
- (iii)brow waxing — (10 credit hours/20 applications);

12. Manicures, Pedicures and Nail Sculpting =(90)— (90 credit hours);

- (i)manicures with hand and forearm massage — (25 credit hours/25 applications);
- (ii)pedicures with foot and leg massage — (20 credit hours/20 applications);
- (iii)nail sculpting — (45 credit hours/15 applications).

### **Level 2 Total Hours: 1500**

Total Hours: 1,500 credit hours/1,500 clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. 43-10-2 and 43-10-12

### **130-3-.03 Cosmetology School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

(1) Credits will be allowed to student as listed below. **Work Performed by Students**

- (a) one cold or heat wave (including shampoo and set) — **3 hours**;
- (b) ~~one bleach (including shampoo and set) — 2 ½ hours;~~ one chemical relaxer (including shampoo and set — 2 hours
- (c) ~~one shampoo, set and comb out, or one pressing, curling and and comb out — 1 ½ hours;~~ bleach (including shampoo and set) — 2 ½ hours;
- (d) ~~one facial — 1 hour;~~ one shampoo, set and comb out, or one pressing, curling and comb-out — 1 ½ hours;
- (e) ~~one brow and lash tint — 30 minutes;~~ one facial — 1 hour;
- (f) ~~one color other than bleach (including shampoo and set) — 2 hours;~~ one brow and lash tint — 30 minutes;
- (g) ~~one hair cut — 45 minutes;~~ one color other than bleach (including shampoo and set) — 2 hours;
- (h) ~~one shampoo — 15 minutes;~~ one hair cut — 45 minutes;
- (i) ~~one arch — 15 minutes;~~ one shampoo — 15 minutes;
- (j) ~~one temporary rinse — 45 minutes;~~ one arch — 15 minutes;
- (k) ~~one scalp treatment — 1 hour;~~ one temporary rinse/semi permanent color — 45 minutes;
- (l) ~~one manicure — 1 hour;~~ one scalp treatment — 1 hour;
- (m) ~~one pedicure — 1 hour;~~ one manicure — 1 hour;
- (n) ~~one chemical relaxer (including shampoo and set) — 2 hours.~~ one pedicure — 1 hour;

(o) one full set of sculptured nail application – 3 hours

(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept ~~on~~ for each student, which shows the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.

(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.03 Cosmetology School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

(1) Credits will be allowed to student as listed below. **Work Performed by Students**

(a) one cold or heat wave (including shampoo and set) — **3 hours**;

(b) one chemical relaxer (including shampoo and set – 2 hours

(c) bleach (including shampoo and set) — **2 ½ hours**;

(d) one shampoo, set and comb out, or one pressing, curling and comb-out — **1 ½ hours**;

(e) one facial — **1 hour**;

(f) one brow and lash tint — **30 minutes**;

(g) one color other than bleach (including shampoo and set) — **2 hours**;

(h) one hair cut — **45 minutes**;

(i) one shampoo — **15 minutes**;

(j) one arch — **15 minutes**;

(k) one temporary rinse/semi permanent color — **45 minutes**;

(l) one scalp treatment — **1 hour**;

(m) one pedicure — **1 hour**; one manicure — **1 hour**;

(n) one pedicure — **1 hour**;

(o) one full set of sculptured nail application – 3 hours

(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept ~~on~~ for each student, which shows the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.

(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.04 Esthetician School Equipment. Amended.**

(1) Each esthetician school must provide the following minimum equipment:

(a) ~~School Signs: — front entrance sign must clearly indicate type of school;~~ secured metal filing cabinets for school and student records;

(b) ~~metal filing cabinets for school and student records;~~ sufficient chalkboards;

(c) ~~suffieient chalkboards;~~ one lavatory bowl for up to fifteen students;

(d) ~~one lavatory bowl for enrollment up to fifteen students;~~ eight facial chairs or cushioned massage tables;

(e) ~~eight facial chairs or cushioned massage tables;~~ one work station or position per two students;

(f) ~~one work station or position per two students;~~ one (1) set of facial equipment per each four (4) work stations or positions to include, brushing, vacuum ionization, glass electrode or high frequency galvanic or cathodic current, decrustation machine, spray or mister,

~~(g) one set of facial equipment per each two work stations or positions to include manual, mechanical, or electrical apparatus (at least one each of the following): electrical heating mask, steamer, brushing, vacuum ionization, glass electrode or high frequency galvanic or cathodic current (prohibited faradic), decrustation machine, spray or mister, one magnification lamp; one(1) set of facial equipment per each two (2) work stations or positions to include steamer, one magnification lamp~~

~~and~~

~~(h) sufficient trays for facial supplies; one covered container for soiled or disposable towels; also, container for soiled linen;~~

~~(i) one dry sterilizer per two work stations or positions; locker space must be furnished for each student;~~

~~(j) one covered waste paper basket container for soiled or disposable towels; one properly lighted make-up area;~~

~~(k) locker space must be furnished for each student; one head form or chart per class;~~

~~(l) one lighted make-up area one head form or chart per class~~

~~(m) one head form or chart per class; school minimum floor space—1800 sq. ft.;~~

~~(n) student sign:—sign must be displayed reading "**Service by Students Only**"; wet sterilizer for each station~~

~~(o) sign prohibiting pets; closed cabinet for clean linen;~~

~~(p) school minimum floor space—1800 sq. ft.; locker space must be furnished for each student~~

~~(q) audio visual aids;~~

~~(r) wet sterilizer for each station;~~

~~(s) closed cabinet for clean linen;~~

~~(t) separate rest rooms for males and females;~~

~~(u) adequate ventilation;~~

~~(v) proper lighting;~~

~~(w) hot and cold running water;~~

~~(x) facilities for clean sanitary drinking water;~~

~~(y) library.~~

~~(z) autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization~~

A basic kit for each esthetician student:

1. tweezers;

2. comedone extractors;

3. cleansers;

4. liquid soap;

5. skin fresheners (toners);

6. astringents;

7. moisturizers;

8. emollient creams;

9. foundation;

10. concealer;

11. blusher;

12. lipstick;

13. powder;

14. eye shadow;

15. mascara;

16. eyeliners;

17. eyebrow pencils;

18. professional pencil sharpener;

19. disposable sponges and applicators; and q-tips. Round cotton pads, rectangular rolled cotton and cotton balls, wooden spatula, muslin strips, disposable gloves .

20. one (1) textbook

21. one (1) workbook

22. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology

(2) All of the above equipment must be standard equipment and maintained in good and safe working condition at all times.

(3) Each cosmetology school desiring to specialize in esthetics and having more than 15 students in the specialized course is required to obtain necessary equipment listed in this chapter.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.04 Esthetician School Equipment. Amended.**

(1) Each esthetician school must provide the following minimum equipment:

- (a) secured metal filing cabinets for school and student records;
- (b) sufficient chalkboards;
- (c) one lavatory bowl for up to fifteen students;
- (d) eight facial chairs or cushioned massage tables;
- (e) one work station or position per two students;
- (f) one (1) set of facial equipment per each four (4) work stations or positions to include, brushing, vacuum ionization, glass electrode or high frequency galvanic or cathodic current, decrustation machine, spray or mister,
- (g) one (1) set of facial equipment per each two (2) work stations or positions to include steamer, one magnification lamp and
- (h) one covered container for soiled or disposable towels; also, container for soiled linen;
- (i) locker space must be furnished for each student;
- (j) one properly lighted make- up area;
- (k) one head form or chart per class;
- (l) one head form or chart per class
- (m) school minimum floor space—1800 sq. ft.;
- (n) wet sterilizer for each station
- (o) closed cabinet for clean linen;
- (p) locker space must be furnished for each student
- (q) audio visual aids;
- (r) wet sterilizer for each station;
- (s) closed cabinet for clean linen;
- (t) separate rest rooms for males and females;
- (u) adequate ventilation;
- (v) proper lighting;
- (w) hot and cold running water;
- (x) facilities for clean sanitary drinking water;
- (y) library.
- (z) autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization

A basic kit for each esthetician student:

- 1. tweezers;
- 2. comedone extractors;
- 3. cleansers;
- 4. liquid soap;
- 5. skin fresheners (toners);

6. astringents;
  7. moisturizers;
  8. emollient creams;
  9. foundation;
  10. concealer;
  11. blusher;
  12. lipstick;
  13. powder;
  14. eye shadow;
  15. mascara;
  16. eyeliners;
  17. eyebrow pencils;
  18. professional pencil sharpener;
  19. disposable sponges and applicators; and q-tips. Round cotton pads, rectangular rolled cotton and cotton balls, wooden spatula, muslin strips, disposable gloves .
  20. one (1) textbook
  21. one (1) workbook
  22. a current copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology
- (2) All of the above equipment must be standard equipment and maintained in good and safe working condition at all times.
- (3) Each cosmetology school desiring to specialize in esthetics and having more than 15 students in the specialized course is required to obtain necessary equipment listed in this chapter.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.05 Esthetician School Curriculum. Amended.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in an esthetician school for a complete course of at least nine (9) months and 1,000 credit hours of training shall be as follows:

(a) No school or licensed instructor shall permit a student to render clinical services until the student has completed 250 credit/ clock hours of training in the following curriculum:

**Level 1**

1. Professional Practices ≡150— (150 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) bacteriology, sterilization, and sanitation;
- (ii) personal hygiene;
- (iii) public health and safety;
- (iv) EPA; OSHA' infection controls standards; and bloodspill procedures;
- (v) AIDS; HIV and communicable diseases;
- (vi) methods;
- (vii) facility hygiene; clean-up applications and procedures.

2. professional ethics ≡20— (20 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) personal attitude;
- (ii) personal image.

3. business practices ≡80— (80 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) State Board Rules and Regulations and Law Rules;
- (ii) esthetician salon development;
- (iii) business insurance;
- (iv) client records;
- (v) confidential ethics;
- (vi) medical record keeping;

- (vii) write your resume;
- (viii) the job interview.

### **Level 1 Total 250 Hours**

(b) When the student has successfully completed 250 credit/clock hours in the above curriculum with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student may progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. After completion of the first 250 credit/clock hour of **Level 1** training, the curriculum shall be as follows:

### **Level 2**

1. Sciences **=320**— (320 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) histology of skin;
  - (I) cell;
  - (II) tissue;
- (ii) dermatology and physiology:
  - (I) structure of the skin and glands;
  - (II) functions of the skin and glands;
  - (III) conditions and disorders of the skin;
  - (IV) physiology of color;
  - (V) morphology.
- (iii) Theory: ~~introduction to microdermabrasion:~~
  - (I) medical terminology;
  - (II) medical charting;
  - (III) clinical sanitation and sterilization;
  - (IV) patient psychology;
  - (V) customer service;
  - (VI) advanced skin analysis/diseases;
  - (VII) camouflage make-up.

2. Body treatment **=75**— (75 credit hours (75 applications):

- (i) massage;
- (ii) wraps;
- (iii) cellulite;
- (iv) aromatherapy;
- (v) reflexology.

3. Facials **=115** — (115 credit hours (115 applications):

- (i) client consultations and skin analysis;
- (ii) manipulations;
- (iii) cleansing;
- (iv) toning;
- (v) post-op therapy;
- (vi) pre-op therapy;
- (vii) spa facials.

( I ) European Massage: The use of all five (5) basic massage movements in a systematic procedure that will improve and promote skin rejuvenation and relaxation;

(II) Aromatherapy: The use of essential oils in masks, massage, and diffusion to correct and promote relaxation;

(III) Product Therapy: The use of epidermabrasion product treatment solution in the form of serum, powders, or infusions for rejuvenation ~~and correction~~ of the skin;

( IV ) Mask Therapy: The use of thermo, fleece, botanicals, anti-aging, and pore cleansing specialty masks to rejuvenate ~~and correct~~ the skin;

( V ) Machines: The use of spa/salon machines that include galvanic, high frequency, brushing, vacuum, and vaporizers for aiding in skin rejuvenation ~~and correction~~. This does

not include the use of the microdermabrasion machine in the school/student environment unless it is a FDA guideline class 1.

4. Make-up **=90**— (90 credit hours (90 applications):

- (i) client consultation and skin analysis;
- (ii) contouring;
- (iii) application;
- (iv) color accent;
- (v) camouflage make-up.

5. Hair removal **=75**— (75 credit hours):

- (i) lip, chin, face — 20 credit hours (40 applications);
- (ii) leg waxing — 10 credit hours (5 applications);
- (iii) bikini waxing — 10 credit hours (20 applications);
- (iv) brow arching — 35 credit hours (70 applications);
- (I) brow tweezing — 15 credit hours (30 applications);
- (II) brow waxing — 15 credit hours (30 applications);
- (III) brown and lash tinting — 5 credit hours (10 applications).

6. Spa/Salon Management **=75**— (75 credit/clock hours):

- (i) front desk;
- (ii) marketing: business, client, product;
- (iii) managerial responsibilities;
- (iv) client retention and tracking;
- (v) business management;
- (vi) business record management;
- (vii) profit and loss statement management.

**Level 2 Total 750**

Total hours — 1,000 credit hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.05 Esthetician School Curriculum. Amended.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in an esthetician school for a complete course of at least nine (9) months and 1,000 credit hours of training shall be as follows:

(a) No school or licensed instructor shall permit a student to render clinical services until the student has completed 250 credit/ clock hours of training in the following curriculum:

**Level 1**

1. Professional Practices **=150**— (150 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) bacteriology, sterilization, and sanitation;
- (ii) personal hygiene;
- (iii) public health and safety;
- (iv) EPA; OSHA' infection controls standards; and bloodspill procedures;
- (v) AIDS; HIV and communicable diseases;
- (vi) methods;
- (vii) facility hygiene; clean-up applications and procedures.

2. professional ethics **=20**— (20 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) personal attitude;
- (ii) personal image.

3. business practices **=80**— (80 credit/clock hours:)

- (i) State Board Rules Laws and Rules;
- (ii) esthetician salon development;
- (iii) business insurance;

- (iv) client records;
- (v) confidential ethics;
- (vi) medical record keeping;
- (vii) write your resume;
- (viii) the job interview.

### **Level 1 Total 250 Hours**

(b) When the student has successfully completed 250 credit/clock hours in the above curriculum with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student may progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. After completion of the first 250 credit/clock hour of **Level 1** training, the curriculum shall be as follows:

### **Level 2**

#### **1. Sciences =320— (320 credit/clock hours:)**

- (i) histology of skin;
  - (I) cell;
  - (II) tissue;
- (ii) dermatology and physiology:
  - (I) structure of the skin and glands;
  - (II) functions of the skin and glands;
  - (III) conditions and disorders of the skin;
  - (IV) physiology of color;
  - (V) morphology.
- (iii) Theory:
  - (I) medical terminology;
  - (II) medical charting;
  - (III) clinical sanitation and sterilization;
  - (IV) patient psychology;
  - (V) customer service;
  - (VI) advanced skin analysis/diseases;
  - (VII) camouflage make-up.

#### **2. Body treatment =75— (75 credit hours (75 applications):**

- (i) massage;
- (ii) wraps;
- (iii) cellulite;
- (iv) aromatherapy;
- (v) reflexology.

#### **3. Facials=115 — (115 credit hours (115 applications):**

- (i) client consultations and skin analysis;
- (ii) manipulations;
- (iii) cleansing;
- (iv) toning;
- (v) post-op therapy;
- (vi) pre-op therapy;
- (vii) spa facials.

(I) European Massage: The use of all five (5) basic massage movements in a systematic procedure that will improve and promote skin rejuvenation and relaxation;

(II) Aromatherapy: The use of essential oils in masks, massage, and diffusion to correct and promote relaxation;

(III) Product Therapy: The use of epidermabrasion product treatment solution in the form of serum, powders, or infusions for rejuvenation of the skin;

( IV ) Mask Therapy: The use of thermo, fleece, botanicals, anti-aging, and pore cleansing specialty masks to rejuvenate the skin;

( V ) Machines: The use of spa/salon machines that include galvanic, high frequency, brushing, vacuum, and vaporizers for aiding in skin rejuvenation. This does not include the use of the microdermabrasion machine in the school/student environment unless it is a FDA guideline class 1.

4. Make-up =**90**— (90 credit hours (90 applications):

- (i) client consultation and skin analysis;
- (ii) contouring;
- (iii) application;
- (iv) color accent;
- (v) camouflage make-up.

5. Hair removal =**75**— (75 credit hours):

- (i) lip, chin, face — 20 credit hours (40 applications);
- (ii) leg waxing — 10 credit hours (5 applications);
- (iii) bikini waxing — 10 credit hours (20 applications);
- (iv) brow arching — 35 credit hours (70 applications);
- (I) brow tweezing — 15 credit hours (30 applications);
- (II) brow waxing — 15 credit hours (30 applications);
- (III) brown and lash tinting — 5 credit hours (10 applications).

6. Spa/Salon Management =**75**— (75 credit/clock hours):

- (i) front desk;
- (ii) marketing: business, client, product;
- (iii) managerial responsibilities;
- (iv) client retention and tracking;
- (v) business management;
- (vi) business record management;
- (vii) profit and loss statement management.

**Level 2 Total 750**

Total hours — 1,000 credit hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12

**130-3-.06 Esthetician School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

(1) Credits will be allowed to students as listed below:

Work Performed by Students

- (a) one facial — **1 credit hour;**
- (b) one body treatment — **1 credit hour;**
- (c) one make-up — **1 credit hour;**
- (d) one hair removal or waxing (lip, chin, face) — **½ credit hour;**
- (e) one hair removal (leg) - **2 credit hours;**
- (f) one hair removal (bikini)- **½ credit hour**
- (g) one arching – **½ credit hour;**
- (h) brow and lash tinting - **1 credit hour.**

(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student which shows the number of hours or training in

each subject, ~~and~~ this work sheet will be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and will be subject to review by the inspector at any time.

(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.06 Esthetician School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

(1) Credits will be allowed to students as listed below:

Work Performed by Students

- (a) one facial — **1 credit hour;**
- (b) one body treatment — **1 credit hour;**
- (c) one make-up — **1 credit hour;**
- (d) one hair removal or waxing (lip, chin, face) — **½ credit hour;**
- (e) one hair removal (leg) - **2 credit hours;**
- (f) one hair removal (bikini)- **½ credit hour**
- (g) one arching – **½ credit hour;**
- (h) brow and lash tinting - **1 credit hour.**

(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink and/or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student which shows the number of hours or training in each subject, ~~and~~ this work sheet will be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and will be subject to review by the inspector at any time.

(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.07 Nail Care School Equipment. Amended.**

(1) Each school of nail care must provide the following minimum equipment:

(a) ~~School Signs:— front entrance sign must clearly indicate type of school; exit sign;~~

Secured metal filing cabinet for school and student records;

~~(b) metal filing cabinet for school and student records;~~ sufficient chalkboards;

~~(c) sufficient chalkboards;~~ audio visual aids;

~~(d) at each work station one dry sterilizer and one wet sanitation container which allows for complete submersion of implements in hospital grade disinfectant;~~ Locker space must be furnished for each student;

~~(e) a minimum of four handwashing sinks separate from restrooms for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students and one additional sink for each fifteen (15) students or fraction thereof;~~ school minimum floor space 1,500 sq. ft.;

~~(f) advanced department will have adequate chairs for patrons; also, adequate ventilation for work area;~~ a minimum of four handwashing sinks separate from restrooms for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students and one additional sink for each fifteen (15) students;

~~(g) fifteen (15) work tables or one work space with adequate light must be provided for every student;~~ fifteen (15) nail stations with adequate light and two (2) chairs for each student;

~~(h) covered waste containers for each work station;~~ Wet disinfectant container for complete immersion of implements in hospital grade disinfectant for each station;

~~(i) covered container for soiled or disposable towels for each work station;~~ Sealed container for storage of disinfected implements. Ultraviolet (UV) sanitizers are acceptable storage containers;

- (j) ~~finger bowl for each student~~— manicure brushes; Covered waster containers for each station;
- (k) ~~sufficient trays for manicuring supplies~~; Closed cabinet for clean towels;
- (l) ~~one set mannequin hands per student~~; Covered container for soiled or disposable towels;
- (m) ~~manicuring kit for each student containing sufficient implements for manieures and pedieures~~; Proper paraffin wax machine and paraffin wax;
- (n) ~~implements to perform application of artificial nails~~; Sufficient trays for nail supplies.
  - 1. nail sculpting;
  - 2. nail wraps;
  - 3. nail tip application;
- (o) ~~four pedicure stations~~; Closed container with cotton;
- (p) ~~sign must be displayed reading "Service by Students Only"~~; Fingerbowl with nail brush for each student;
- (q) ~~sign prohibiting pets~~; One set of mannequin hands and/or practice fingers per student;
- (r) ~~school minimum floor space 1,500 sq. ft.~~; One (1) whirlpool pedicure spa (with fixed plumbing) and three (3) footbaths;
- (s) ~~audio-visual aids~~; Professional electric nail file/drill;
- (t) ~~elosed cabinet for clean linens~~; UV Gel light;
- (u) ~~locker space for student's personal items~~; an auto clave is an acceptable method of sterilization;
- (v) ~~hot and cold running water~~; The basic kit and supplies for nail technology students shall contain the following:
  - 1 a. metal cuticle pusher
  - b. metal nail file
  - c. manicure scissors
  - d. cuticle nippers
  - e. nail implements
  - f. metal drill bits
  - g. ingernail clipper
  - h. toenail clipper
  - i. tweezers and metal tongs
  - 2. nail care supplies (disposable)
    - a. emery boards
    - b. nail buffers
    - c. orangewood sticks
    - d. cotton balls, q-tips
    - e. sponges applicators
    - f. wooden spatula
    - g. foot file or paddle
    - h. pedicure slippers and toe separators
    - i. disposable gloves
  - 3. nail polish
  - 4. polish remover
  - 5. cuticle remover and cuticle oil
  - 6. hand cream
  - 7. materials for acrylic/gel sculptured nails, gel nails, nail wraps and nail tip applications
  - 8. sanitizing foot soak
  - 9. massage lotion
  - 10. antiseptic foot spray
  - 11. Copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology;

12. one (1) textbook

13. one (1) workbook)

~~(w) facilities for clean sanitary drinking water;~~

~~(x) library;~~

~~(y) adequate ventilation which complies with local, state, and federal requirements;~~

~~(z) separate rest rooms for males and females.~~

(2) All of the above equipment must be standard equipment and maintained in good working condition at all times.

(3) Each cosmetology school desiring to teach a separate course in nail care and having more than fifteen (15) students in the specialized course is required to obtain necessary equipment listed in this chapter.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.07 Nail Care School Equipment. Amended.**

(1) Each school of nail care must provide the following minimum equipment:

(a) Secured metal filing cabinet for school and student records;

(b) sufficient chalkboards;

(c) audio visual aids;

(d) Locker space must be furnished for each student;

(e) school minimum floor space 1,500 sq. ft.;

(f) a minimum of four handwashing sinks separate from restrooms for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students and one additional sink for each fifteen (15) students;

(g) fifteen (15) nail stations with adequate light and two (2) chairs for each student;

(h) Wet disinfectant container for complete immersion of implements in hospital grade disinfectant for each station;

(i) Sealed container for storage of disinfected implements. Ultraviolet (UV) sanitizers are acceptable storage containers;

(j) Covered waster containers for each station;

(k) Closed cabinet for clean towels;

(l) Covered container for soiled or disposable towels;

(m) Proper paraffin wax machine and paraffin wax;

(n) Sufficient trays for nail supplies.

(o) Closed container with cotton;

(p) Fingerbowl with nail brush for each student;

(q) One set of mannequin hands and/or practice fingers per student;

(r) One (1) whirlpool pedicure spa (with fixed plumbing) and three (3) footbaths;

(s) Professional electric nail file/drill;

(t) UV Gel light;

(u) an autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization;

(v) The basic kit and supplies for nail technology students shall contain the following:

1 a. metal cuticle pusher

b. metal nail file

c. manicure scissors

d. cuticle nippers

e. nail implements

f. metal drill bits

g. fingernail clipper

h. toenail clipper

i. tweezers and metal tongs

2. nail care supplies (disposable)
    - a. emery boards
    - b. nail buffers
    - c. orangewood sticks
    - d. cotton balls, q-tips
    - e. sponges applicators
    - f. wooden spatula
    - g. foot file or paddle
    - h. pedicure slippers and toe separators
    - i. disposable gloves
  3. nail polish
  4. polish remover
  5. cuticle remover and cuticle oil
  6. hand cream
  7. materials for acrylic/gel sculptured nails, gel nails, nail wraps and nail tip applications
  8. sanitizing foot soak
  9. massage lotion
  10. antiseptic foot spray
  11. Copy of the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology;
  12. one (1) textbook
  13. one (1) workbook)
- (2) All of the above equipment must be standard equipment and maintained in good working condition at all times.
- (3) Each cosmetology school desiring to teach a separate course in nail care and having more than fifteen (15) students in the specialized course is required to obtain necessary equipment listed in this chapter.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.08 Nail Care Curriculum. Amended.**

(1) One (1) credit hour EQUALS one (1) clock hour unless the credit is being given for an application. The curriculum for students enrolled in a nail care school for a complete course of at least four (4) months and 525 credit/525 clock hours of training shall be as follows:

(a) No school or licensed instructor shall permit a student to render clinical services until the student has successfully completed 140 credit/140 clock hours of training with a minimum passing score of 75 percent in the following:

**Level 1**

1. Theory ~~=(140)~~ — (140 credit/140 clock hours):
  - (i) Personal hygiene, professional ethics, and customer relations;
  - (ii) Sanitation and sterilization, public health and safety, infection control and bacteriology;
  - (iii) AIDS, HIV, and other communicable diseases;
  - (iv) EPA, OSHA, other government standards; bloodspill procedure;
  - (v) Physiology and anatomy, including that of the hands, arms feet and legs;
  - (vi) The art of massage and massage techniques, introduction to reflexology;
  - (vii) Nail composition and structure, nail disorders and nail diseases;
  - (viii) Chemistry, including product knowledge, composition, usage, safety, and hazardous materials;
  - (ix) Methods and procedures and implements, including their usage and safety;

(x)Salon Business:

(I)Salon development and business operations;

(II)Client consultations;

(III)Business development;

(IV)Marketing, advertising and retailing;

(V)Career/business planning, including preparation for interviews, resume writing, and goal setting.

(xi)Georgia State Board of Cosmetology laws, and rules ~~and regulations~~, a copies of which shall be provided to students.

**Level 1 total: 140**

(2)After the student has successfully completed 140 credit/140 clock hours in the above curriculum with a passing score of 75 percent, the student may progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. **Note: Hours and applications are to apply to a full set only.** After the completion of the first 140 credit/140 clock hours of **Level 1** training, the curriculum shall be as follows:

(a)Manicure with hand and forearm massage (basic, hot oil, and various spa manicures) = **(70)**— (70 credit hours/70 applications);

(b)Pedicure with foot and leg massage (basic and various spa pedicures) = **(60)**-(60 credit hours/60 applications);

(c)Nail Sculpting = **(90)**— (90 credit hours/30 applications);

(d)Artificial tip application with overlay = **(60)**-(60 credit hours/20 applications);

(e)Nail wrapping (silk, linen, etc. on natural nails only) = **(20)** - (20credit hours/20 applications);

(f)Fill-in application = **(30)**-(30 credit hours/30 applications);

(g)Artificial nail removal/nail repair = **(10)**-(10 credit hours/20 applications);

(h)Professional nail drill usage with professional drill designed for fingernails only = **(5)**-(5 credit hours/10 applications);

(i)Nail art techniques = **(10)** - (10 credit hours/10 applications);

(j)Airbrush nail art = **(5)** - (5 credit hours/5 applications);

(k)Paraffin treatments on hands and feet = **(5)** - (5 credit hours/10 applications);

(l)Student competition: advanced techniques and related subjects = **(20)**-(20 credit hours).

**Level 2 Total: 385**

TOTAL HOURS -525 credit/clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.08 Nail Care Curriculum. Amended.**

(1) One (1) credit hour EQUALS one (1) clock hour unless the credit is being given for an application. The curriculum for students enrolled in a nail care school for a complete course of at least four (4)months and 525 credit/525 clock hours of training shall be as follows:

(a)No school or licensed instructor shall permit a student to render clinical services until the student has successfully completed 140 credit/140clock hours of training with a minimum passing score of 75 percent in the following:

**Level 1**

1. Theory = **(140)** — (140 credit/140 clock hours);

(i)Personal hygiene, professional ethics, and customer relations;

(ii)Sanitation and sterilization, public health and safety, infection control and bacteriology;

(iii)AIDS, HIV, and other communicable diseases;

- (iv)EPA, OSHA, other government standards; bloodspill procedure;
- (v)Physiology and anatomy, including that of the hands, arms feet and legs;
- (vi)The art of massage and massage techniques, introduction to reflexology;
- (vii)Nail composition and structure, nail disorders and nail diseases;
- (viii)Chemistry, including product knowledge, composition, usage, safety, and hazardous materials;
- (ix)Methods and procedures and implements, including their usage and safety;
- (x)Salon Business:
  - (I)Salon development and business operations;
  - (II)Client consultations;
  - (III)Business development;
  - (IV)Marketing, advertising and retailing;
  - (V)Career/business planning, including preparation for interviews, resume writing, and goal setting.
- (xi)Georgia State Board of Cosmetology laws; and rules ~~and regulations~~, a copies of which shall be provided to students.

**Level 1 total: 140**

(2)After the student has successfully completed 140 credit/140 clock hours in the above curriculum with a passing score of 75 percent, the student may progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. **Note: Hours and applications are to apply to a full set only.** After the completion of the first 140 credit/140 clock hours of **Level 1** training, the curriculum shall be as follows:

- (a)Manicure with hand and forearm massage (basic, hot oil, and various spa manicures) = **(70)**— (70 credit hours/#70 applications);
- (b)Pedicure with foot and leg massage (basic and various spa pedicures) = **(60)**-(60 credit hours/60 applications);
- (c)Nail Sculpting = **(90)**— (90 credit hours/#30 applications);
- (d)Artificial tip application with overlay = **(60)**-(60 credit hours/20 applications);
- (e)Nail wrapping (silk, linen, etc. on natural nails only) =**(20)** - (20credit hours/20 applications);
- (f)Fill-in application = **(30)**-(30 credit hours/30 applications);
- (g)Artificial nail removal/nail repair = **(10)**-(10 credit hours/20 applications);
- (h)Professional nail drill usage with professional drill designed for fingernails only = **(5)** -(5 credit hours/10 applications);
- (i)Nail art techniques = **(10)** – (10 credit hours/10 applications);
- (j)Airbrush nail art = **(5)** - (5 credit hours/5 applications);
- (k)Paraffin treatments on hands and feet = **(5)** - (5 credit hours/10 applications);
- (l)Student competition: advanced techniques and related subjects = **(20)**-(20 credit hours).

**Level 2 Total: 385**

TOTAL HOURS -525 credit/clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.09 Nail Care School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

(1) Credits will be allowed to students as listed below:

Work Performed by Students

- (a) Manicure with hand and forearm massage — 1 credit hour;
- (b) Pedicure with foot and leg massage — 1 credit hour;
- (c) Nail sculpting — 3 credit hours;
- (d) Artificial tip application with overlay — 3 credit hours;

- (e) Nail Wrapping (silk, linen, etc.) on natural nails only — 1 credit hour;
  - (f) Fill in application — 1 credit hour;
  - (g) Nail repair or artificial nail removal — ½ credit hour;
  - (h) Professional nail drill usage — ½ credit hour;
  - (i) Nail art and airbrush techniques — 5 minutes per nail or 1 credit hour/full set;
  - (j) Natural nail overlay — 1 credit hour;
  - (k) Paraffin treatment — ½ credit hour.
- (2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student ~~showing~~ which shows the number of hours of training in each subject, ~~and~~ This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.
- (3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.09 Nail Care School Curriculum Credit Hours. Amended.**

- (1) Credits will be allowed to students as listed below:  
Work Performed by Students
- (a) Manicure with hand and forearm massage — 1 credit hour;
  - (b) Pedicure with foot and leg massage — 1 credit hour;
  - (c) Nail sculpting — 3 credit hours;
  - (d) Artificial tip application with overlay — 3 credit hours;
  - (e) Nail Wrapping (silk, linen, etc.) on natural nails only — 1 credit hour;
  - (f) Fill in application — 1 credit hour;
  - (g) Nail repair or artificial nail removal — ½ credit hour;
  - (h) Professional nail drill usage — ½ credit hour;
  - (i) Nail art and airbrush techniques — 5 minutes per nail or 1 credit hour/full set;
  - (j) Natural nail overlay — 1 credit hour;
  - (k) Paraffin treatment — ½ credit hour.
- (2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student which shows the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June, and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.
- (3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.10 Curriculum for Cosmetology Instructor Training at the Master Level. Amended.**

- ~~(1) Persons receiving instructor training in a cosmetology school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor. (2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.~~
- ~~(a) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished an instructor training manual.~~

~~(3) The curriculum in a school of cosmetology for an instructor training course at the master level, must include at least one year and 1500 hours of training as stated below. For purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.~~

~~(a) General Education — 500 credit /500 clock hours: All classroom instruction must be by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology, nail care, and esthetics. State Cosmetology Board — 50 credit/50 clock hours:~~

~~(i) Laws, rules and regulations.~~

~~2. Principles of teaching cosmetology — 300 credit/300 clock hours;~~

~~3. Principles of teaching nail care — 75 credit/75 clock hours;~~

~~4. Principles of teaching esthetics — 75 credit/75 clock hours.~~

~~(b) Teaching techniques and audio visual aids — 450 credit/450 clock hours:~~

~~1. Curriculum development;~~

~~2. Lesson plans and presentations;~~

~~3. Classroom management and discipline;~~

~~4. Demonstrations and lecturing;~~

~~5. Testing and examinations.~~

~~(c) Practice teaching — 550 credit/550 clock hours.~~

~~(4) The above 1,500 credit/1,500 clock hours curriculum for a complete cosmetology instructor training course at the master level shall be posted in a prominent place in all cosmetology schools at all times.~~

~~Authority O.C.G.A. Secs. 43-10-2, 43-10-12. **History.** Original Rule entitled “Curriculum for Cosmetology~~

~~Instructor Training at the Master Level” adopted. F. Aug. 21, 1984; eff. Sept. 10, 1984.~~

~~**Repealed:** New~~

~~Rule of same title adopted. F. Feb. 25, 1986; eff. Mar. 17, 1986. **Amended:** F. June 19, 2002; eff. July 9,~~

~~2002.~~

### **130-3-10 Hair Designer School Equipment.**

(1) Each school desiring to teach hair design must provide the following minimum equipment:

(a) secured metal filing cabinets for school and student records;

(b) sufficient chalkboards;

(c) one (1) wet disinfectant container for each work station;

(d) a minimum of four (4) shampoo basins for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students, and one (1) additional shampoo basin for each additional fifteen (15) students or fraction thereof;

(e) a minimum of seven (7) hair dryers for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students and one (1) additional dryer for each additional five (5) students;

(f) work stations with mirrors for each individual student;

(g) sufficient closed containers for soiled or disposable towels;

(h) one mannequin per student

(i) one closed container per station for clean implements only

(j) one closed towel container to adequately store clean linens.

(k) locker space for personal items must be furnished for each student;

(l) school minimum floor space: 1800 sq. ft.;

(m) audio visual aids

(n) an autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization

(o) a current copy of the Laws and Rules of the Georgia state Board of Cosmetology

(p) The basic kit for hair design students shall contain the following:

1. mannequin with hair at least 6-7 inches long

2. basic combs
3. scissors/shears/ and thinning shears
4. razor with guard and disposable blades
- 5 brushes
6. rollers
7. clips
8. protective capes
9. disposable neck strips
10. perm rods and end papers
11. marcel iron/ flat iron
12. blow dryer
13. consumable supplies for esthetics
14. standard textbook
15. one (1) workbook

(2) All of the above equipment must be standard beauty equipment and maintained in good and safe working condition at all times.

(3) Any cosmetology school desiring to teach a separate course in cosmetology, esthetics or nail care technology and having more than fifteen (15) students in an cosmetology, esthetics or nail technology each course must shall provide all necessary equipment and supplies for each such school course.

Authority: O.C.G.A. §§43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.10 Hair Designer School Equipment.**

(1) Each school desiring to teach hair design must provide the following minimum equipment:

- (a) secured metal filing cabinets for school and student records;
- (b) sufficient chalkboards;
- (c) one (1) wet disinfectant container for each work station;
- (d) a minimum of four (4) shampoo basins for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students, and one (1) additional shampoo basin for each additional fifteen (15) students or fraction thereof;
- (e) a minimum of seven (7) hair dryers for enrollment up to fifteen (15) students and one (1) additional dryer for each additional five (5) students;
- (f) work stations with mirrors for each individual student;
- (g) sufficient closed containers for soiled or disposable towels;
- (h) one mannequin per student
- (i) one closed container per station for clean implements only
- (j) one closed towel container to adequately store clean linens.
- (k) locker space for personal items must be furnished for each student;
- (l) school minimum floor space: 1800 sq. ft.;
- (m) audio visual aids
- (n) an autoclave is an acceptable method of sterilization
- (o) a current copy of the Laws and Rules of the Georgia state Board of Cosmetology
- (p) The basic kit for hair design students shall contain the following:
  1. mannequin with hair at least 6-7 inches long
  2. basic combs
  3. scissors/shears/ and thinning shears
  4. razor with guard and disposable blades
  - 5 brushes
  6. rollers

7. clips
8. protective capes
9. disposable neck strips
10. perm rods and end papers
11. marcel iron/ flat iron
12. blow dryer
13. consumable supplies for esthetics
14. standard textbook
15. one (1) workbook

(2) All of the above equipment must be standard beauty equipment and maintained in good and safe working condition at all times.

(3) Any cosmetology school desiring to teach a separate course in cosmetology, esthetics or nail care technology and having more than fifteen (15) students in an cosmetology, esthetics or nail technology each course must shall provide all necessary equipment and supplies for each such school course.

Authority: O.C.G.A. §§43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**~~130-3-.11 Curriculum for Esthetician Instructor Training. Amended.~~**

~~(1) Persons receiving esthetician instructor training in a cosmetology or esthetician school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or schools at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.~~

~~(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.~~

~~(a) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.~~

~~(3) The curriculum in a cosmetology or esthetician school, for an instructor training course, of at least nine (9) months and 1,000 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.~~

~~(a) The Professional Teacher — 200 credit/200 clock hours:~~

~~1. The Teacher:~~

~~(i) Personality;~~

~~(ii) Technical Knowledge;~~

~~(iii) Teacher's Characteristics;~~

~~(iv) Teachers as Professionals.~~

~~2. Preparation for Teaching:~~

~~(i) Planning the Course/Curriculum Development;~~

~~(ii) Preparing Lesson Plans:~~

~~(I) Objectives;~~

~~(II) Outline;~~

~~(III) Student Activities.~~

~~(iii) Steps of Teaching:~~

~~(I) Preparation;~~

~~(II) Presentation;~~

~~(III) Application;~~

~~(IV) Testing.~~

~~(b) Student Motivation and Learning — 200 credit/200 clock hours:~~

~~1. State Board of Cosmetology Requirements and Record Keeping;~~

~~2. Student Motivation;~~

3. Student Participation;  
4. Student Personalities;  
5. Individual Differences:  
(i) Slow Learner;  
(ii) Gifted Learner.  
(c) Methods, Management and Material— 225 credit/225 clock hours:

1. Methods, Procedures and Techniques of Teaching;

(i) Lectures and Discussions;  
(ii) Demonstrations;  
(iii) Conducting Practice Activities;  
(iv) Questioning Techniques;  
(v) Results;  
(vi) Special Situations.

2. Classroom Management:

(i) Physical Environment;  
(ii) Administrative Duties;  
(iii) Student Discipline;  
(iv) Class Supervision;  
(v) Classroom Routine;  
(vi) Corrective Measures.

3. Teaching Materials:

(i) Audio Visual Aids;  
(ii) Values of Different Teaching Aids;  
(iii) Correct Usage;  
(iv) Miscellaneous Teaching Materials:  
(I) Textbooks;  
(II) Workbooks;  
(III) Reference Books;  
(IV) Creative Aids.

(d) Testing and Evaluation— 125 credit/125 clock hours:

1. Testing:

(i) Purpose;  
(ii) Performance Tests;  
(iii) Written Tests;  
(iv) Standardized Tests.

2. Evaluation:

(i) General Student Abilities;  
(ii) Student Achievement;  
(iii) Teacher Evaluation.

(e) Education (Vocabulary Development)— 250 credit/250 clock hours.

Total Hours— 1,000 credit/1,000 Clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. Secs. 43 10 2, 43 10 12. **History.** Original Rule entitled “Curriculum for Esthetician Instructor Training” adopted. F. Aug. 21, 1984; eff. Sept. 10, 1984.

**Repealed:** New Rule of same title adopted. F. Feb. 25, 1986; eff. Mar. 17, 1986. **Repealed:** New Rule of same title adopted. F. Jan. 12, 2001; eff. Feb. 1, 2001. **Repealed:** New Rule of same title adopted. F. Feb. 26, 2002; eff. Mar. 18, 2002.

### **Rule 130-3-.11 Hair Designer School Curriculum.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of hair design for a complete course of a minimum of seven (7) months and thirteen hundred twenty five (1325) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a) Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain 250 total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, 200 hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, and the final 50 hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

### **Level 1**

1. Theory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to hair design:

(i) chemistry;

(ii) sanitation and sterilization;

(iii) EPA; OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;

(iv) AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.

2. Theory of Permanent Waving =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its action / reaction;

(ii) the chemistry of relaxers and its action/reaction

(iii) the principles of permanent wave rod placement.

3. Theory of Hair Coloring =(45) — (45 credit hours/45 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) chemistry of color;

(ii) principles of color application;

(iii) the chemical action/reaction of hair color.

4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) hair analysis;

(ii) scalp condition;

(iii) treatments;

(iv) analysis, condition and treatments.

5. Theory of Hair cutting =(30)— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) proper handling and care of instruments.

6. Theory of Shampooing =(15)— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) proper procedure of shampooing;

(ii) knowledge of shampoo formulas;

(iii) water temperature.

7. Theory of Hairdressing/hairstyling =(70)— (70 credit hours/ 70 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:

(i) 20 hours on mannequin

(ii) 50 hours training on live models (without compensation).

### **Level 1 total: 250**

(b) When a student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above Level 1 curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER

COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS (250 CLOCK HOURS) OF Level 1 TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Theory =(100)— (100 credit hours/100 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:

(i) sterilization and sanitation;

(ii) physiology;

(iii) electricity;

(iv) safety precautions;

(v) chemistry of beauty products actions/ reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes and bleaches;

(vi) salesmanship;

(vii) telephone etiquette and ethics;

(viii) salon deportment: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.

2. Social Skills, Reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board Laws and Rules =(50) — (50 credit hours/50 clock hours).

3. Laboratory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tints and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.

4. Hairdressing/Hairstyling, Shampoo and Comb-out =(140)— (140 credit hours): Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconditioner, finger waving, wet curls, blow drying ,thermocurling, hair styles, comb outs , and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals;

5. Hair Cutting and Shaping =(160)— (160 credit hours /120applications).

6. Permanent Waving =(215)— (215 credit hours (60 applications).

7. Chemical Hair Relaxing =(135)— (135 credit hours /50 applications).

8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening =(175)— (175 credit hours): Shall include the following:

(i) temporary rinses and semi-permanent color— 10 credit hours (12 applications);

(ii) hair lightening — 60 credit hours (24 applications);

(iii) virgin tints — 60 credit hours (30 applications);

(iv) retouches — 40 credit hours (20 applications);

(v) predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;

(vi) dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours;

9. Scalp and Hair Treatment =50)— (50 credit hours (50 applications)

which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, and reconditioning treatments.

**Level 2 Total hours: 1075**

Total hours 1325

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **Rule 130-3-.11 Hair Designer School Curriculum.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of hair design for a complete course of a minimum of seven (7) months and thirteen hundred twenty five (1325) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a) Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain **250** total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, **200** hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, and the final **50** hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals

one (1) clock hour.

### **Level 1**

1. Theory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to hair design:

- (i) chemistry;
- (ii) sanitation and sterilization;
- (iii) EPA; OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;
- (iv) AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.

2. Theory of Permanent Waving =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its action / reaction;
- (ii) the chemistry of relaxers and its action/reaction
- (iii) the principles of permanent wave rod placement.

3. Theory of Hair Coloring =(45) — (45 credit hours/45 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) chemistry of color;
- (ii) principles of color application;
- (iii) the chemical action/reaction of hair color.

4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) hair analysis;
- (ii) scalp condition;
- (iii) treatments;
- (iv) analysis, condition and treatments.

5. Theory of Hair cutting =(30)— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) proper handling and care of instruments.

6. Theory of Shampooing =(15)— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) proper procedure of shampooing;
- (ii) knowledge of shampoo formulas;
- (iii) water temperature.

7. Theory of Hairdressing/hairstyling =(70)— (70 credit hours/ 70 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:

- (i) 20 hours on mannequin
- (ii) 50 hours training on live models (without compensation).

### **Level 1 total: 250**

(b) When a student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above Level 1 curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER

**COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS (250 CLOCK HOURS) OF Level 1 TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:**

1. Theory =(100)— (100 credit hours/100 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:

- (i) sterilization and sanitation;
- (ii) physiology;
- (iii) electricity;
- (iv) safety precautions;
- (v) chemistry of beauty products actions/ reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes

and bleaches;

(vi) salesmanship;

(vii) telephone etiquette and ethics;

(viii) salon department: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.

2. Social Skills, Reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board Laws and Rules =(50) — (50 credit hours/50 clock hours).

3. Laboratory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tints and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.

4. Hairdressing/Hairstyling, Shampoo and Comb-out =(140)— (140 credit hours): Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconditioner, finger waving, wet curls, blow drying ,thermocurling, hair styles, comb outs , and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals;

5. Hair Cutting and Shaping =(160)— (160 credit hours /120applications).

6. Permanent Waving =(215)— (215 credit hours (60 applications)).

7. Chemical Hair Relaxing =(135)— (135 credit hours /50 applications).

8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening =(175)— (175 credit hours): Shall include the following:

(i) temporary rinses and semi-permanent color— 10 credit hours (12 applications);

(ii) hair lightening — 60 credit hours (24 applications);

(iii) virgin tints — 60 credit hours (30 applications);

(iv) retouches — 40 credit hours (20 applications);

(v) predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;

(vi) dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours;

9. Scalp and Hair Treatment =(50)— (50 credit hours (50 applications)

which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, and reconditioning treatments.

**Level 2 Total hours: 1075**

Total hours 1325

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **Rule 130-3-.11 Hair Designer School Curriculum.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of hair design for a complete course of a minimum of seven (7) months and thirteen hundred twenty five (1325) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a) Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain 250 total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, 200 hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, and the final 50 hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

#### **Level 1**

1. Theory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to hair design:

(i) chemistry;

(ii) sanitation and sterilization;

(iii) EPA; OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;

(iv) AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.

2. Theory of Permanent Waving =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its action / reaction;

(ii) the chemistry of relaxers and its action/reaction

(iii) the principles of permanent wave rod placement.

3. Theory of Hair Coloring =(45) — (45 credit hours/45 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) chemistry of color;

(ii) principles of color application;

(iii) the chemical action/reaction of hair color.

4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) hair analysis;

(ii) scalp condition;

(iii) treatments;

(iv) analysis, condition and treatments.

5. Theory of Hair cutting =(30)— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) proper handling and care of instruments.

6. Theory of Shampooing =(15)— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) proper procedure of shampooing;

(ii) knowledge of shampoo formulas;

(iii) water temperature.

7. Theory of Hairdressing/hairstyling =(70)— (70 credit hours/ 70 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:

(i) 20 hours on mannequin

(ii) 50 hours training on live models (without compensation).

**Level 1 total: 250**

(b) When a student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above Level 1 curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS (250 CLOCK HOURS) OF Level 1 TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Theory =(100)— (100 credit hours/100 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:

(i) sterilization and sanitation;

(ii) physiology;

(iii) electricity;

(iv) safety precautions;

(v) chemistry of beauty products actions/ reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes and bleaches;

(vi) salesmanship;

(vii) telephone etiquette and ethics;

(viii) salon deportment: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.

2. Social Skills, Reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board Laws and Rules =(50) — (50 credit hours/50 clock hours).

3. Laboratory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tints and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.

4. Hairdressing/Hairstyling, Shampoo and Comb-out =(140)— (140 credit hours): Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconditioner, finger waving, wet curls, blow drying ,thermocurling, hair styles, comb outs , and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals;

5. Hair Cutting and Shaping =(160)— (160 credit hours /120applications).

6. Permanent Waving =(215)— (215 credit hours (60 applications)).

7. Chemical Hair Relaxing =(135)— (135 credit hours /50 applications).

8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening =(175)— (175 credit hours): Shall include the following:

(i) temporary rinses and semi-permanent color— 10 credit hours (12 applications);

(ii) hair lightening — 60 credit hours (24 applications);

(iii) virgin tints — 60 credit hours (30 applications);

(iv) retouches — 40 credit hours (20 applications);

(v) predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;

(vi) dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours;

9. Scalp and Hair Treatment =50)— (50 credit hours (50 applications)

which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, and reconditioning treatments.

**Level 2 Total hours: 1075**

Total hours 1325

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **Rule 130-3-.11 Hair Designer School Curriculum.**

The curriculum for students enrolled in a school of hair design for a complete course of a minimum of seven (7) months and thirteen hundred twenty five (1325) credit hours for training shall be as follows:

(a) Each school or licensed instructor shall require each student to obtain **250** total hours of training before the student performs clinical services on a client. Of these 250 hours, **200** hours shall be theory and training on mannequins, and the final **50** hours shall be on live models in the curriculum as stated below.

For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

#### **Level 1**

1. Theory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects related to hair design:

(i) chemistry;

(ii) sanitation and sterilization;

(iii) EPA; OSHA; Infection Control Standards; bloodspill procedures;

(iv) AIDS; HIV; and communicable diseases.

2. Theory of Permanent Waving =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

(i) the chemistry of permanent wave solution and its action / reaction;

(ii) the chemistry of relaxers and its action/reaction

(iii) the principles of permanent wave rod placement.

3. Theory of Hair Coloring =(45) — (45 credit hours/45 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:

- (i) chemistry of color;
  - (ii) principles of color application;
  - (iii) the chemical action/reaction of hair color.
4. Theory of Hair and Scalp Treatments and Conditioning =(20)— (20 credit hours/20 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
- (i) hair analysis;
  - (ii) scalp condition;
  - (iii) treatments;
  - (iv) analysis, condition and treatments.
5. Theory of Hair cutting =(30)— (30 credit hours/30 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
- (i) proper handling and care of instruments.
6. Theory of Shampooing =(15)— (15 credit hours/15 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following subjects:
- (i) proper procedure of shampooing;
  - (ii) knowledge of shampoo formulas;
  - (iii) water temperature.
7. Theory of Hairdressing/hairstyling =(70)— (70 credit hours/ 70 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the following:
- (i) 20 hours on mannequin
  - (ii) 50 hours training on live models (without compensation).

**Level 1 total: 250**

(b) When a student has completed 250 credit hours (250 clock hours) in the above Level 1 curriculum, with a minimum passing score of 75 percent, the student is prepared to progress to the clinic floor to perform clinical services on patrons. AFTER COMPLETION OF THE FIRST 250 CREDIT HOURS (250 CLOCK HOURS) OF Level 1 TRAINING THE CURRICULUM SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Theory =(100)— (100 credit hours/100 clock hours): Shall include instruction by a licensed instructor in the theory and practice of all required subjects of cosmetology and the following subjects related to cosmetology:
  - (i) sterilization and sanitation;
  - (ii) physiology;
  - (iii) electricity;
  - (iv) safety precautions;
  - (v) chemistry of beauty products actions/ reactions, and the composition of tints, dyes and bleaches;
  - (vi) salesmanship;
  - (vii) telephone etiquette and ethics;
  - (viii) salon deportment: consisting of instruction in courtesy, neatness and professional attitude in meeting the public.
2. Social Skills, Reception or Desk Work, Art and Ethics, State Board Laws and Rules =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours).
3. Laboratory =(50)— (50 credit hours/50 clock hours): Shall include practical training in preparing germicidal solutions, shampoos, tints and bleaches, practical training in washing and sanitizing all equipment in the beauty salon.
4. Hairdressing/Hairstyling, Shampoo and Comb-out =(140)— (140 credit hours): Shall include shampoos, comprising dry, soapless, oil and reconditioner, finger waving, wet curls, blow drying ,thermocurling, hair styles, comb outs , and all types of pressing; hot combs and chemicals;
5. Hair Cutting and Shaping =(160)— (160 credit hours /120applications).

6. Permanent Waving =(215)— (215 credit hours (60 applications).
7. Chemical Hair Relaxing =(135)— (135 credit hours /50 applications).
8. Hair Coloring and Hair Lightening =(175)— (175 credit hours): Shall include the following:
  - (i) temporary rinses and semi-permanent color— 10 credit hours (12 applications);
  - (ii) hair lightening — 60 credit hours (24 applications);
  - (iii) virgin tints — 60 credit hours (30 applications);
  - (iv) retouches — 40 credit hours (20 applications);
  - (v) predisposition tests — 2 ½ credit hours;
  - (vi) dye and tint removal — 2 ½ credit hours;
9. Scalp and Hair Treatment =50)— (50 credit hours (50 applications) which shall include brushing and manipulations, corrective treatments, and reconditioning treatments.

**Level 2 Total hours: 1075**

Total hours 1325

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.12 Curriculum for Nail Care Instructor Training.**

- ~~(1) Persons receiving nail care instructor training in a cosmetology or nail care school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.~~
- ~~(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.~~
- ~~(a) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.~~
- ~~(3) The curriculum in a cosmetology or nail care school for an instructor training course must include a minimum of at least four (4) months and 525 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.~~
  - ~~(a) Course planning and instructions — 225 credit/225 clock hours:
    1. curriculum development;
    2. lesson planning and presentations;
    3. teaching principles;
    4. teaching methods;
    5. teaching aids and materials;
    6. understanding different learning styles.~~
  - ~~(b) Lecture and demonstration — 100 credit/100 clock hours:
    1. lesson planning;
    2. preparation;
    3. vocabulary and instruction;
    4. voice and clarity.~~
  - ~~(c) Classroom management — 115 credit/115 clock hours:
    1. student motivation;
    2. student participation;
    3. disciplinary procedures;
    4. classroom supervision;
    5. record keeping.~~
  - ~~(d) Testing and evaluations — 25 credit/25 clock hours.~~
  - ~~(e) Developing student activities and projects — 50 credit/50 clock hours;~~

~~(f) State board of cosmetology: rules, regulations and laws — 10 credit/10 clock hours:~~

~~1. rules, regulations, and laws;~~

~~2. student quarterly progress.~~

~~Total Hours — 525 credit/525 clock hours.~~

~~Authority O.C.G.A. Secs. 43-10-2, 43-10-12. **History.** Original Rule entitled “Curriculum for Nail Care~~

~~Instructor Training” adopted. F. Feb. 25, 1986; eff. Mar. 17, 1986. **Repealed:** New Rule of same title~~

~~adopted. F. Jan. 12, 2001; eff. Feb. 1, 2001. **Repealed:** New Rule of same title adopted. F. Feb. 26, 2002;~~

~~eff. Mar. 18, 2002~~

### **Rule 130-3-.12 Hair Designer School Curriculum Credit Hours.**

**(1) Credits will be allowed to student as listed below. Work Performed by Students**

**(a) one cold or heat wave (including shampoo and set) — 3 hours;**

**(b) one chemical relaxer (including shampoo and set – 2 hours**

**(c) bleach (including shampoo and set – 2 ½ hours;**

**(d) one shampoo, set and comb out, or one pressing, curling and comb out – 1 ½ hours;**

**(e) one color other than bleach (including shampoo and set) – 2 hours;**

**(f) one hair cut – 45 minutes;**

**(g)one shampoo – 15 minutes;**

**(h) one temporary rinse/semi permanent color – 45 minutes;**

**(i) one scalp treatment – 1 hour;**

**(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student which shows the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.**

**(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.**

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

### **Rule 130-3-.12 Hair Designer School Curriculum Credit Hours.**

**(1) Credits will be allowed to student as listed below. Work Performed by Students**

**(a) one cold or heat wave (including shampoo and set) — 3 hours;**

**(b) one chemical relaxer (including shampoo and set – 2 hours**

**(c) bleach (including shampoo and set – 2 ½ hours;**

**(d) one shampoo, set and comb out, or one pressing, curling and comb out – 1 ½ hours;**

**(e) one color other than bleach (including shampoo and set) – 2 hours;**

**(f) one hair cut – 45 minutes;**

**(g)one shampoo – 15 minutes;**

**(h) one temporary rinse/semi permanent color – 45 minutes;**

**(i) one scalp treatment – 1 hour;**

**(2) A weekly work sheet, signed in black ink or electronic signature by the student and the instructor, shall be kept on each student which shows the number of hours of training in each subject. This work sheet shall be sub-totaled in January, April, June and September and subject to review by the inspector at any time.**

**(3) Any student shall have the right to refuse to attend classes for more than eight (8) hours in one day.**

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-9 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-13 Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Citations.**

(1) Each Cosmetology, Esthetic, and/or Nail Care School shall post in a conspicuous place the current school license issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) Each school shall post in a conspicuous place the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology rules and regulations, the sanitary regulations, and the most recent inspection report or citation.

(3) All student permits shall be posted in a conspicuous place for public view on school premises.

(4) All Master licenses and Master Instructor(s), Esthetician Instructor(s) and Manicurist Instructor(s) licenses issued to licensees by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology must be posted in a conspicuous place for public view on school premises.

Authority O.C.G.A. Sec. 43-10-2. **History.** Original Rule entitled "Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Citations" adopted. F. July 20, 1993, eff. Aug. 9, 1993.

**Rule 130-2-13 Curriculum for Cosmetology Instructor Training**

(1) Persons receiving instructor training in a cosmetology school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished an instructor training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a school of cosmetology for an instructor training course shall be completed within one (1) year and 750 hours of training as stated below.

For purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) General Education =(250)—(250 credit / 250 clock hours): All practice teaching must be supervised by a licensed instructor.

1. Cosmetology Laws, rules and regulations —(25 credit/25 clock hours.)

2. Principles of teaching cosmetology —(150 credit/ 150 clock hours;)

3. Principles of teaching nail care —(37.50 credit/ 37.50 clock hours;)

4. Principles of teaching esthetics —(37.50 credit/ 37.50 clock hours.)

(b) Teaching techniques and audio visual aids =(225)—(225 credit/ 225 clock hours):

1. Curriculum development;

2. Lesson plans and presentations;

3. Classroom management and discipline;

4. Demonstrations and lectures;

5. various methods of evaluation.

(c) Practice teaching =(275)—(275 credit/ 275 clock hours.)

Total Cosmetology Instructor Training Hours: 750

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**Rule 130-2-13 Curriculum for Cosmetology Instructor Training**

(1) Persons receiving instructor training in a cosmetology school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in

charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished an instructor training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a school of cosmetology for an instructor training course shall be completed within one (1) year and 750 hours of training as stated below.

For purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) General Education =(250)—(250 credit / 250 clock hours): All practice teaching must be supervised by a licensed instructor.

1 Cosmetology Laws, rules and regulations —(25 credit/25 clock hours.)

2. Principles of teaching cosmetology —(150 credit/ 150 clock hours;)

3. Principles of teaching nail care —(37.50 credit/ 37.50 clock hours;)

4. Principles of teaching esthetics —(37.50 credit/ 37.50 clock hours.)

(b) Teaching techniques and audio visual aids =(225)—(225 credit/ 225 clock hours):

1. Curriculum development;

2. Lesson plans and presentations;

3. Classroom management and discipline;

4. Demonstrations and lectures;

5. various methods of evaluation.

(c) Practice teaching =(275)—(275 credit/ 275 clock hours.)

Total Cosmetology Instructor Training Hours: 750

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-14 Curriculum Requirements for Barber to Become Master Cosmetologist.**

~~In order to be licensed as a master cosmetologist, a person licensed to practice barbering must meet all the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 43-10-9(h) and pass the master cosmetologist examination. Before taking the examination, a barber must submit proof of successfully completing 250 credit hours of training in a board approved cosmetology school in the following subjects:~~

~~(a) Hairstyling — 100 credit hours:~~

~~1. hair cutting and shaping — 10 credit hours required (3/4 credit hours for 1 application);~~

~~2. roller placement; shampoo; set and comb out; blow drying; one pressing; curling and comb out — 25 credit hours required (11/2 credit hours for 1 application);~~

~~3. fingerwaves — 20 credit hours required (1 credit hour for 1 application);~~

~~4. pin curls — 20 credit hours required (1 credit hour for 1 application);~~

~~5. braiding — 25 credit hours required (1 credit hour for 1 application);~~

~~(b) Nail care — 30 credit hours (hours and applications are to apply to full sets only):~~

~~1. manicure — 10 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);~~

~~2. pedicures — 5 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);~~

~~3. nail sculpting — 15 credit hours (3 credit hours/1 application).~~

~~(c) Hair lightening and color removal — 70 credit hours:~~

~~1. hair lightening — 40 credit hours (21/2) credit hours/1 application);~~

~~2. virgin lightening — 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);~~

~~3. virgin tint — 30 credit hours (2 credit hours/1 application);~~

~~4. retouch tint — 30 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);~~

~~(d) Permanent waving — 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);~~

(e) Chemical relaxing—20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);  
(f) Skin care—10 credit hours comprised of 1 credit hour per application or facial given.  
Total Hours—250 credit hours.  
Authority O.C.G.A. Secs. 43-10-2, 43-10-9. **History.** Original Rule entitled “Curriculum Requirements for Barber to Become Master Cosmetologist” adopted. F. Feb. 26, 2002; eff. Mar. 18, 2002

### **130-3-14 Curriculum for Hair Designer Instructor Training**

(1) Persons receiving instructor training in a hair design school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

(a) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished an instructor training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a school of hair design for an instructor training course shall be completed within one (1) year and 750 hours of training as stated below.

For purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) General Education =(225) —(225 credit / 225 clock hours):

All practice teaching must be supervised by a licensed instructor.

(b) Cosmetology Laws and rules =(25)(25 credit/25 clock hours.)

(c). Principles of teaching hair design =(100)—100 credit/ 100 clock hours;

(d) Teaching techniques and audio visual aids =(225)—(225 credit/ 225 clock hours):

1. Curriculum development;

2. Lesson plans and presentations;

3. Classroom management and discipline;

4. Demonstrations and Theory lectures;

5. various methods of evaluation.

(e) Practice teaching =(175)—(175 credit/ 175 clock hours).

Total Hair Designer Instructor Hours: 750

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-14 Curriculum for Hair Designer Instructor Training**

(1) Persons receiving instructor training in a hair design school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

(a) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished an instructor training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a school of hair design for an instructor training course shall be completed within one (1) year and 750 hours of training as stated below.

For purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) General Education =(225) —(225 credit / 225 clock hours):

All practice teaching must be supervised by a licensed instructor.

(b) Cosmetology Laws and rules =(25)(25 credit/25 clock hours.)

(c). Principles of teaching hair design =(100)—100 credit/ 100 clock hours;

(d) Teaching techniques and audio visual aids =(225)—(225 credit/ 225 clock hours):

1. Curriculum development;

2. Lesson plans and presentations;
  3. Classroom management and discipline;
  4. Demonstrations and Theory lectures;
  5. various methods of evaluation.
- (e) Practice teaching =**(175)**—(175 credit/ 175 clock hours).  
Total Hair Designer Instructor Hours: 750

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.15 Curriculum for Esthetician Instructor Training. Amended.**

(1) Persons receiving esthetician instructor training in a cosmetology or esthetician school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or schools at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

(3) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.

(4) The curriculum in a cosmetology or esthetician school, for an instructor training course, must be completed within nine (9) months and 500 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) The Professional Teacher =**100**— (100 credit/100 clock hours:)

1. The Teacher:

(i) Personality;

(ii) Technical Knowledge;

(iii) Teacher's Characteristics;

(iv) Teachers as Professionals.

2. Preparation for Teaching:

(i) Planning the Course/Curriculum Development;

(ii) Preparing Lesson Plans:

(I) Objectives;

(II) Outline;

(III) Student Activities.

(iii) Steps of Teaching:

(I) Preparation;

(II) Presentation;

(III) Application;

(IV) Testing.

(b) Student Motivation and Learning =**100**— (100 credit/100 clock hours:)

1. State Board of Cosmetology Requirements and Record Keeping;

2. Student Motivation;

3. Student Participation;

4. Student Personalities;

5. Individual Differences:

(i) Slow Learner;

(ii) Gifted Learner.

(c) Methods, Management and Material =**115**— (115 credit/115 clock hours:)

1. Methods, Procedures and Techniques of Teaching;

(i) Lectures and Discussions;

(ii) Demonstrations;

(iii) Conducting Practice Activities;

- (iv) Questioning Techniques;
- (v) Results;
- (vi) Special Situations.
- 2. Classroom Management:
  - (i) Physical Environment;
  - (ii) Administrative Duties;
  - (iii) Student Discipline;
  - (iv) Class Supervision;
  - (v) Classroom Routine;
  - (vi) Corrective Measures.
- 3. Teaching Materials:
  - (i) Audio-Visual Aids;
  - (ii) Values of Different Teaching Aids;
  - (iii) Correct Usage;
  - (iv) Miscellaneous Teaching Materials:
    - (I) Textbooks;
    - (II) Workbooks;
    - (III) Reference Books;
    - (IV) Creative Aids.
- (d) Methods of Testing and Evaluation =60— (60 credit/60 clock hours:)
  - 1. Testing:
    - (i) Purpose;
    - (ii) Performance Tests;
    - (iii) Written Tests;
    - (iv) Standardized Tests.
  - 2. Evaluation:
    - (i) General Student Abilities;
    - (ii) Student Achievement;
    - (iii) Teacher Evaluation.
- (e) Education (Vocabulary Development) =125— (125 credit/125 clock hours.)
- Total Hours —500credit/500Clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.15 Curriculum for Esthetician Instructor Training. Amended.**

- (1) Persons receiving esthetician instructor training in a cosmetology or esthetician school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or schools at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.
- (2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.
- (3) Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.
- (4) The curriculum in a cosmetology or esthetician school, for an instructor training course, must be completed within nine (9) months and 500 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, one (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.
  - (a) The Professional Teacher =100— (100 credit/100 clock hours:)
    - 1. The Teacher:
      - (i) Personality;
      - (ii) Technical Knowledge;
      - (iii) Teacher's Characteristics;

- (iv) Teachers as Professionals.
- 2. Preparation for Teaching:
  - (i) Planning the Course/Curriculum Development;
  - (ii) Preparing Lesson Plans:
    - (I) Objectives;
    - (II) Outline;
    - (III) Student Activities.
  - (iii) Steps of Teaching:
    - (I) Preparation;
    - (II) Presentation;
    - (III) Application;
    - (IV) Testing.
- (b) Student Motivation and Learning =**100**— (100 credit/100 clock hours:)
  - 1. State Board of Cosmetology Requirements and Record Keeping;
  - 2. Student Motivation;
  - 3. Student Participation;
  - 4. Student Personalities;
  - 5. Individual Differences:
    - (i) Slow Learner;
    - (ii) Gifted Learner.
- (c) Methods, Management and Material =**115**— (115 credit/115 clock hours:)
  - 1. Methods, Procedures and Techniques of Teaching;
    - (i) Lectures and Discussions;
    - (ii) Demonstrations;
    - (iii) Conducting Practice Activities;
    - (iv) Questioning Techniques;
    - (v) Results;
    - (vi) Special Situations.
  - 2. Classroom Management:
    - (i) Physical Environment;
    - (ii) Administrative Duties;
    - (iii) Student Discipline;
    - (iv) Class Supervision;
    - (v) Classroom Routine;
    - (vi) Corrective Measures.
  - 3. Teaching Materials:
    - (i) Audio-Visual Aids;
    - (ii) Values of Different Teaching Aids;
    - (iii) Correct Usage;
    - (iv) Miscellaneous Teaching Materials:
      - (I) Textbooks;
      - (II) Workbooks;
      - (III) Reference Books;
      - (IV) Creative Aids.
- (d) Methods of Testing and Evaluation =**60**— (60 credit/60 clock hours:)
  - 1. Testing:
    - (i) Purpose;
    - (ii) Performance Tests;
    - (iii) Written Tests;
    - (iv) Standardized Tests.

2. Evaluation:

(i) General Student Abilities;

(ii) Student Achievement;

(iii) Teacher Evaluation.

(e) Education (Vocabulary Development) =**125**— (125 credit/125 clock hours.)

Total Hours —500credit/500Clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.16 Curriculum for Nail Care Instructor Training.**

(1) Persons receiving nail care instructor training in a cosmetology or nail care school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a cosmetology or nail care school for an instructor training course be completed within four (4) months and 250 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) Course planning and instructions =**(100)** — (100 credit/100 clock hours):

1. curriculum development;

2. lesson planning and presentations;

3. teaching principles;

4. teaching methods;

5. teaching aids and materials;

6. understanding different learning styles.

(b) Lecture and demonstration =**(50)**— ( 50 credit/ 50 clock hours):

1. lesson planning;

2. preparation;

3. vocabulary and instruction;

4. voice and clarity.

(c) Classroom management =**(57)**— (57 credit/ 57 clock hours):

1. student motivation;

2. student participation;

3. disciplinary procedures;

4. classroom supervision;

5. record keeping.

(d) various method of evaluations =**(13)**— (13credit/ 13clock hours).

(e) Developing student activities and projects =**(20)**— (20credit/ 20clock hours);

(f) State Board of Cosmetology: Laws and rules =**(10)**— (10 credit/10 clock hours):

1. Laws and rules;

2. student quarterly progress.

Total Hours — 250 credit/250 clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, and 43-10-12.

**130-3-.16 Curriculum for Nail Care Instructor Training.**

(1) Persons receiving nail care instructor training in a cosmetology or nail care school shall spend all of their training time under the direct supervision of a licensed instructor

and shall not be left in charge of students or school at any time without the direct supervision of a licensed instructor.

(2) Persons receiving instructor training are not permitted to perform clinical services on a patron for compensation, either by appointment or otherwise.

Persons receiving instructor training shall be furnished a teacher's training manual.

(3) The curriculum in a cosmetology or nail care school for an instructor training course be completed within four (4) months and 250 credit hours of training as stated below. For the purposes of this Rule, (1) credit hour equals one (1) clock hour.

(a) Course planning and instructions =~~(100)~~ — (100 credit/100 clock hours):

1. curriculum development;
2. lesson planning and presentations;
3. teaching principles;
4. teaching methods;
5. teaching aids and materials;
6. understanding different learning styles.

(b) Lecture and demonstration =~~(50)~~ — ( 50 credit/ 50 clock hours):

1. lesson planning;
2. preparation;
3. vocabulary and instruction;
4. voice and clarity.

(c) Classroom management =~~(57)~~ — (57 credit/ 57 clock hours):

1. student motivation;
2. student participation;
3. disciplinary procedures;
4. classroom supervision;
5. record keeping.

(d) various method of evaluations =~~(13)~~ — (13credit/ 13clock hours).

(e) Developing student activities and projects =~~(20)~~ — (20credit/ 20clock hours);

(f) State Board of Cosmetology: Laws and rules =~~(10)~~ — (10 credit/10 clock hours):

1. Laws and rules;
2. student quarterly progress.

Total Hours — 250 credit/250 clock hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-17 Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Inspections.**

(1) Each School shall post in an open area, the current school license issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) Each school shall post in an open area, available for public view, the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology Laws and rules, the sanitation regulations, and the most recent inspection report.

(3) A complete current copy of the law, O.C.G.A. §§43-10-1 through 43-10-20, and the Laws and rules of the Board, Chapters 130-1 through 130-11, shall be available upon request.

(4) All Instructor(s) licenses issued to licensees by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology must be posted in an open area for public view on school premises.

(5) A sign shall be displayed at the school's front entrance reading: "Service by Students Only".

(6)A sign shall be displayed at the school's front entrance prohibiting pets, except guide and assistance dogs as permitted by Title 30 of the Georgia Code.

(7)The following signs shall be posted in an open area of each school and shall be available for public view at all times:

(a) All cosmetology services shall only be performed on intact, healthy scalp, skin, and nails.

(b) Customers should not shave their legs the same day as receiving pedicure services to reduce the risk of infection.

(c) Any razor-like implement, such as credo blades, shall not be used to prevent the risk of injury or infection.

(d) Pumice stones shall not be reused from one customer to another to prevent the spread of bacteria.

(8) The following signs shall be posted in the pedicure service area of a school and shall be available for public view at all times:

(a) Customers should not shave their legs the same day as receiving pedicure services to reduce the risk of infection.

(b) Any razor-like implement, such as credo blades, shall not be used to prevent the risk of injury or infection.

(c) Pumice stones shall not be reused from one customer to another to prevent the spread of bacteria.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-.17 Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Inspections.**

(1) Each School shall post in an open area, the current school license issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) Each school shall post in an open area, available for public view, the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology Laws and rules, the sanitation regulations, and the most recent inspection report.

(3) A complete current copy of the law, O.C.G.A. §§43-10-1 through 43-10-20, and the Laws and rules of the Board, Chapters 130-1 through 130-11, shall be available upon request.

(4) All Instructor(s) licenses issued to licensees by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology must be posted in an open area for public view on school premises.

(5) A sign shall be displayed at the school's front entrance reading: "Service by Students Only".

(6)A sign shall be displayed at the school's front entrance prohibiting pets, except guide and assistance dogs as permitted by Title 30 of the Georgia Code.

(7)The following signs shall be posted in an open area of each school and shall be available for public view at all times:

(a) All cosmetology services shall only be performed on intact, healthy scalp, skin, and nails.

(b) Customers should not shave their legs the same day as receiving pedicure services to reduce the risk of infection.

(c) Any razor-like implement, such as credo blades, shall not be used to prevent the risk of injury or infection.

(d) Pumice stones shall not be reused from one customer to another to prevent the spread of bacteria.

(8) The following signs shall be posted in the pedicure service area of a school and shall be available for public view at all times:

(a) Customers should not shave their legs the same day as receiving pedicure services to reduce the risk of infection.

(b) Any razor-like implement, such as credo blades, shall not be used to prevent the risk of injury or infection.

(c) Pumice stones shall not be reused from one customer to another to prevent the spread of bacteria.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-12.

### **130-3-18 Curriculum Requirements for Barber to Become Master**

**Cosmetologist.** In order to be licensed as a master cosmetologist, a person licensed to practice barbering must meet all the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 43-10-9(h) and pass the master cosmetologist examination. Before taking the examination, a barber must submit proof of successfully completing 250 credit hours of training in a board approved cosmetology school in the following subjects:

(a) Hairstyling =(75)— (75credit hours):

1. hair cutting and shaping — (10 credit hours required -3/4 credit hours for 1 application);

2. roller placement; shampoo; set and comb-out; blow drying; one pressing; marcel iron and comb-out— (25 credit hours required -1 ½ credit hours for 1 application);

3. fingerwaves— (20 credit hours required -1 credit hour for 1 application);

4. pincurls— (20 credit hours required -1 credit hour for 1 application);

(b) Nail care =(30)— (30 credit hours and applications are to apply to full sets only):

1. manicure 10 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

2. pedicures — 5 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

3. nail sculpting — 15 credit hours (3 credit hours/1 application).

(c) Hair lightening and color removal =(95)— (95 credit hours):

1. hair lightening — 20 credit hours (2 ½ credit hours/1 application);

2. virgin lightening —35credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

3. virgin tint — 20 credit hours (2 credit hours/1 application);

4. retouch tint — 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

(d) Permanent waving =(20)— 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

(e) Chemical relaxing =(20)— 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

(f) Skin care =(10)— 10 credit hours comprised of 1 credit hour per application or facial given.

Total Hours — 250 credit hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-9(j).

### **130-3-18 Curriculum Requirements for Barber to Become Master**

**Cosmetologist.** In order to be licensed as a master cosmetologist, a person licensed to practice barbering must meet all the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 43-10-9(h) and pass the master cosmetologist examination. Before taking the examination, a barber must submit proof of successfully completing 250 credit hours of training in a board approved cosmetology school in the following subjects:

(a) Hairstyling =(75)— (75credit hours):

1. hair cutting and shaping — (10 credit hours required -3/4 credit hours for 1 application);

2. roller placement; shampoo; set and comb-out; blow drying; one pressing; marcel iron and comb-out— (25 credit hours required -1 ½ credit hours for 1 application);

3. fingerwaves— (20 credit hours required -1 credit hour for 1 application);

4. pincurls— (20 credit hours required -1 credit hour for 1 application);

(b) Nail care =(30)— (30 credit hours and applications are to apply to full sets only):

1. manicure 10 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);

2. pedicures — 5 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);
  3. nail sculpting — 15 credit hours (3 credit hours/1 application).
- (c) Hair lightening and color removal =(95)— (95 credit hours:)
1. hair lightening — 20 credit hours (2 ½ credit hours/1 application);
  2. virgin lightening —35credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);
  3. virgin tint — 20 credit hours (2 credit hours/1 application);
  4. retouch tint — 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);
- (d) Permanent waving =(20)— 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);
- (e) Chemical relaxing =(20)— 20 credit hours (1 credit hour/1 application);
- (f) Skin care =(10)— 10 credit hours comprised of 1 credit hour per application or facial given.
- Total Hours — 250 credit hours.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-9(j).

**130-4-.01 Quarters Facilities. Amended.**

(1) All ~~establishments~~ facilities (salons/shops or schools) wherein cosmetology services is ~~are~~ practiced or taught within the State of Georgia must provide suitable quarters equipped to give adequate services, subject to inspection by ~~constituted~~ representatives of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) A beauty ~~establishment~~ facility shall have a permanent and definite location in which the ~~profession of~~ cosmetology professions of master cosmetologist, hair designer, nail technician, and/or esthetician, manicuring or esthetics is ~~are~~ practiced in accordance with the laws and rules and regulations of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology. All mobile units, including kiosks, carts, mobile homes, trailers, and motor homes, shall not be licensed as ~~manicurist, esthetician or beauty~~ salons/shops unless they meet all requirements of ~~this~~ the Board and are permanently anchored on the ground with wheels detached.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.01 Facilities. Amended.**

(1) All facilities (salons/shops or schools) wherein cosmetology services ~~is~~ are practiced or taught within the State of Georgia must provide suitable quarters equipped to give adequate services, subject to inspection by representatives of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(2) A beauty facility shall have a permanent and definite location in which the cosmetology professions of master cosmetologist, hair designer, nail technician, and/or esthetician, are practiced in accordance with the laws and rules of the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology. All mobile units, including kiosks, carts, mobile homes, trailers, and motor homes, shall not be licensed as salons/shops unless they meet all requirements of the Board and are permanently anchored on the ground with wheels detached.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.02 Use of Premises Facility for Home Salon/Shop Domestic Purposes. Amended.**

Space used for a cosmetology facility must be separated by tight, ceiling high partitions from residence rooms and must have separate restrooms. The cosmetology facility shall have a separate outside entrance. Separate space must be provided for a cosmetology ~~establishment~~

facility. The use of any such space for sleeping, dining or any other domestic purpose is prohibited.

O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-, 43-10-11 and 43-10-18.

**130-4-.02 Use of Facility for Home Salon/Shop Amended.**

Space used for a cosmetology facility must be separated by tight, ceiling high partitions from residence rooms and must have separate restrooms. The cosmetology facility shall have a separate outside entrance. Separate space must be provided for a cosmetology facility. The use of any such space for sleeping, dining or any other domestic purpose is prohibited.

O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-, 43-10-11 and 43-10-18.

**130-4-.03 Premises Facilities (salon/shop/school). Amended.**

Space used for a cosmetology establishment facility must be separated by tight, ceiling high partitions from residence rooms.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.04 Cleanliness. Amended.**

Walls, ceiling, floors, furniture and equipment must be kept free from dust, dirt and debris. All equipment must be kept in good and safe working condition at all times.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.05 Plumbing, Hot and Cold Water. Amended.**

Each ~~establishment~~ facility must have proper toilet and plumbing facilities and an adequate supply of hot and cold running water in accordance with recognized health standards.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.05 Plumbing, Hot and Cold Water. Amended.**

Each facility must have proper toilet and plumbing facilities and an adequate supply of hot and cold running water in accordance with recognized health standards.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.06 Apprentices. Amended.**

No cosmetology ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop shall have in training more than one apprentice for each ~~cosmetologist~~ person licensed at the master cosmetologist, hair designer esthetician or ~~manicurist~~ nail technician level. More than one apprentice is permissible if affirmatively shown to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology that the apprentice will be denied the opportunity of learning the profession of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technology provided that the burden of proof shall be upon the person or persons seeking to show that the opportunity to learn the profession has been denied.

(1) Each apprentice shall be trained and supervised by one master cosmetologist as shown on the apprentice's registration filed with the Board by the salon/shop owner/manager.

(2) The salon/shop owner/manager may temporarily designate a qualified master to train and supervise the apprentice in the absence of the master licensee who is registered with the Board as being the master responsible for training the apprentice. The temporarily designated

master shall have at least 36 months experience and shall have held a certificate of a master for at least 36 months as required by O.C.G.A. §43-10-14(a). The burden of proof for establishing that circumstances exist which require assigning an apprentice to another licensed and qualified master on a temporary basis shall be deemed to have been met if the training master is absent from the salon/shop for a limited duration of time. Such time periods include, but are not limited to, illness, jury duty, military leave, absences for personal business or travel, vacation, temporary leave of absence from work, or a leave under the federal “Family and Medical Leave Act”.

(1)Any apprentice training hours obtained at a location other than the salon/shop registered with the Board as the apprentice’s training salon/shop shall not be counted toward the number of hours required for examination and licensing.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-14.

#### **130-4-.06 Apprentices. Amended.**

No cosmetology salon/shop shall have in training more than one apprentice for each person licensed at the master cosmetologist, hair designer esthetician or nail technician level. More than one apprentice is permissible if affirmatively shown to the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology that the apprentice will be denied the opportunity of learning the profession of cosmetology, hair design, esthetics, or nail technology provided that the burden of proof shall be upon the person or persons seeking to show that the opportunity to learn the profession has been denied.

(1)Each apprentice shall be trained and supervised by one master cosmetologist as shown on the apprentice’s registration filed with the Board by the salon/shop owner/manager.

(2)The salon/shop owner/manager may temporarily designate a qualified master to train and supervise the apprentice in the absence of the master licensee who is registered with the Board as being the master responsible for training the apprentice. The temporarily designated master shall have at least 36 months experience and shall have held a certificate of a master for at least 36 months as required by O.C.G.A. §43-10-14(a). The burden of proof for establishing that circumstances exist which require assigning an apprentice to another licensed and qualified master on a temporary basis shall be deemed to have been met if the training master is absent from the salon/shop for a limited duration of time. Such time periods include, but are not limited to, illness, jury duty, military leave, absences for personal business or travel, vacation, temporary leave of absence from work, or a leave under the federal “Family and Medical Leave Act”.

(1)Any apprentice training hours obtained at a location other than the salon/shop registered with the Board as the apprentice’s training salon/shop shall not be counted toward the number of hours required for examination and licensing.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-9 and 43-10-14.

#### **130-4-.07 Employment of Barbers in Cosmetology Shops or Salons Salons/Shops.** **Amended.**

(1) A person holding a current Georgia Master Barber License may be employed in a cosmetology ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop without ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop having a barber shop license.

(2) A licensed master barber shall not train an apprentice barber in a cosmetology ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-18.1.

**130-4-.07 Employment of Barbers in Cosmetology Salons/Shops. Amended.**

(1) A person holding a current Georgia Master Barber License may be employed in a cosmetology salon/shop without salon/shop having a barber shop license.

(2) A licensed master barber shall not train an apprentice barber in a cosmetology salon/shop.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-18.1

**130-4-.08 Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Citations Inspection Reports. Amended**

(1) Each ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop shall post in an ~~conspicuous place~~ open area the current ~~salon or shop~~ salon/shop license issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology, or a current copy of the online verification of licensure.

(2) Each person employed in ~~shop or salon~~ the salon/shop shall post, ~~at their work stations~~ in an open area, the current license/permit issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology or the Georgia State Board of Barbers, or a current copy of the online verification of licensure.

(3) ~~Shops or salons~~ Salons/Shops shall have posted in an open area at all times a copy of the most recent inspection report. ~~or citation.~~

(4) ~~Shops or salons~~ Salons/Shops shall comply with rules for sanitation, health and disinfectants in Chapter 130-5 of the Rules of Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(5) Sanitary rules and regulations governing salons or shops in the State of Georgia shall be posted in an open area ~~conspicuous place~~ in the ~~shop or salon~~ salon/shop so as to be easily read by customers.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**130-4-.08 Posting of Licenses, Rules, Reports and Inspection Reports. Amended**

(1) Each salon/shop shall post in an open area the current salon/shop license issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology, or a current copy of the online verification of licensure.

(2) Each person employed in the salon/shop shall post, in an open area, the current license/permit issued to them by the Georgia State Board of Cosmetology or the Georgia State Board of Barbers, or a current copy of the online verification of licensure.

(3) Salons/Shops shall have posted in an open area at all times a copy of the most recent inspection report.

(4) Salons/Shops shall comply with rules for sanitation, health and disinfectants in Chapter 130-5 of the Rules of Georgia State Board of Cosmetology.

(5) Sanitary rules and regulations governing salons or shops in the State of Georgia shall be posted in an open area in the salon/shop so as to be easily read by customers.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6, 43-10-8 and 43-10-11.

**Michelle Turley moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** to post the rule revisions with changes as discussed as follows and to notify the Department of Human Resources of the revised rules:

**130-5-.03 Sterilization. Amended.**

The use ~~on any patron~~ of any article that is not properly cleansed and sterilized on any patron is prohibited. Hands must be properly cleansed and ~~sterilized~~ sanitized prior to servicing each client.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.03 Sterilization. Amended.**

The use of any article that is not properly cleansed and sterilized on any patron is prohibited. Hands must be properly cleansed and sanitized prior to servicing each client.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.04 Waste and Garbage. Amended.**

All waste material must be removed daily. Garbage shall be stored in a covered, washable container and shall not be left in the establishment overnight. Each ~~establishment~~ facility must be free from stale food and soiled dishes.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.04 Waste and Garbage. Amended.**

All waste material must be removed daily. Garbage shall be stored in a covered, washable container and shall not be left in the establishment overnight. Each facility must be free from stale food and soiled dishes.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.07 Pets. Amended**

It shall be unlawful to allow pets in cosmetology establishments. Pets shall not be allowed in cosmetology facilities, with the exception of animals for handicapped patrons.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.07 Pets. Amended**

Pets shall not be allowed in cosmetology facilities, with the exception of animals for handicapped patrons.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2 and 43-10-6.

**130-5-.09 Protective Clothing. Amended.**

Cosmetologists, hair designers, nail technicians, and estheticians in Georgia are required to abide by all federal and state laws for cosmetology, hair design, nail care, and esthetics. The professions of cosmetology, hair design, nail technology and esthetics are subject to the guidelines and rules promulgated by The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) of the United States government. Cosmetologists, hair designers, nail technicians, estheticians are also subject to the provisions of O.C.G.A. §43-1-19. Practitioners of the cosmetology profession in Georgia shall wear appropriate protective clothing for clinical services to prevent occupational exposure to potential infectious materials. Appropriate clothing shall include, but not be limited to, clinical jackets, gloves and/or similar outer garments for the protection from infectious or harmful materials.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-9.

**130-5-.09 Protective Clothing. Amended.**

Cosmetologists, hair designers, nail technicians, and estheticians in Georgia are required to abide by all federal and state laws for cosmetology, hair design, nail care, and esthetics. The professions of cosmetology, hair design, nail technology and esthetics are subject to the guidelines and rules promulgated by The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) of the United States government. Cosmetologists, hair designers, nail technicians, estheticians are also subject to the provisions of O.C.G.A. §43-1-19. Practitioners of the cosmetology profession in Georgia shall wear appropriate protective clothing for clinical services to prevent occupational exposure to potential infectious materials. Appropriate clothing shall include, but not be limited to, clinical jackets, gloves and/or similar outer garments for the protection from infectious or harmful materials.

Authority O.C.G.A. §§ 43-10-2, 43-10-6 and 43-10-9.

**Betty Carlisle moved, Wanda Brooks seconded, and the Board voted unanimously** that the formulation and the adoption of these rules does not impose excessive regulatory cost on any a licensee and any cost to comply with the proposed rule cannot be reduced by a less expensive alternative that fully accomplishes the objectives of O.C.G.A § 43-10-1, 43-10-2 and 43-10-9(a) and that it is not legal or feasible to meet the objectives of O.C.G.A § 43-10-1, 43-10-2 and 43-10-9(a) to adopt or implement differing actions for business as listed at O.C.G.A. § 50-13-4(3) (A), (B), (C), & (D) and that the formulation and adoption of these rules will impact every licensee in the same manner and each licensee is independently licensed, owned, and operated in the field of Cosmetology, Nail Technology, Esthetics and Hair Design.

**Michelle Turley moved, Betty Carlisle seconded, and the Board voted** unanimously to approve the following actions on applications, request, etc:

|                               |                            |                         |
|-------------------------------|----------------------------|-------------------------|
| Joy J. Watson                 | Hair Designer/Recip        | Denied/Sit for exam     |
| Justin L. Fredericksen        | MasCosAppr/Renew           | Approved                |
| Thu Phuong Nguyen             | NailTech/Recip/Fl.         | More Info               |
| Gladys S. Bahammou            | Esthetician/Recip/Az.      | Approved                |
| Victor M. Reyes               | MasCos/Recip/Puerto Rico   | Approved                |
| Janice Southey                | Esthetician/Recip/S.Africa | More Info               |
| Rachelle Jawicki              | Salon/Clarify policy       | Approved                |
| J'Lore-Education & Mentor     | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| Eminence Organic Skin Care    | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| McBride Research Labs         | CE Provider                | Approve 2 CE hours only |
| Macon Beauty                  | CE Provider                | More info               |
| Salon Nede                    | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| Cosmetologists Chicago Assoc. | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| Atlanta Beauty Academy        | CE Provider                | Approve 2 CE hours only |
| Atache USA Inc.               | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| Miladys Career Institute      | CE Provider                | Submit new application  |
| The Esani Institute           | CE Provider                | Approved                |
| Great Extension Inc.          | CE Provider                | Denied                  |
| Roberts School of Cosmetology | CE Provider                | Denied                  |

Toni & Guy Hairdressing

CE Provider

Denied

There was no further business conducted. The meeting adjourned at 3:30 pm.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Martha Harris, Chairperson – The Georgia State Board of Cosmetology

\_\_\_\_\_  
Date

\_\_\_\_\_  
Eleanor Surrency, Executive Director – The Georgia State Cosmetology Board

\_\_\_\_\_  
Date

